
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 Board of Directors Meeting 

August 12, 2021 

Director Rupp, GM Friedenbach, Director Lindberg, Director Woo, and Director Latt 
touring the destruction at Ruth Lake Page 1 of 245Page 1 of 245



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Directors 

Meeting Start Time: 9:00 a.m. 
DUE TO COVID-19 THE DISTRICT WILL BE  

HOLDING THE MEETING VIA ZOOM 
August 12, 2021 

District Mission 
Reliably deliver high quality drinking water to the communities and customers we serve in the greater 
Humboldt Bay Area at a reasonable cost. Reliably deliver untreated water to our wholesale industrial 
customer(s) at a reasonable cost. Protect the long-term water supply and water quality interests of the 
District in the Mad River watershed. 

COVID-19 Notice 
Consistent with Cal/OSHA, the California Department of Public Health, and the Humboldt County Public 
Health Officer’s June 18, 2021 COVID-19 Workplace Rules, the Board members will be participating via 
Zoom. The Board room at 828 7th street will be open to the public and wearing of face coverings  
will be enforced.  

Members of the public may also join the meeting online at:   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88021681583?pwd=Q3VRVXh2MWVQclhNRzU3TTlYNGJCUT09 

Participate by phone: 1-669-900-9128  
Enter meeting ID: 880 2168 1583 
Enter password: 706408 

If you are participating via phone and would like to comment, please press *9 to raise your hand. 

How to Submit Public Comment: Members of the public may provide public comment via email until 5 
pm. the day before the Board Meeting by sending comments to the Board Secretary at 
hbitner@hbmwd.com. Email comments must identify the agenda item in the subject line of the email. 
Written comments may also be mailed to 828 7th Street, Eureka, CA 95501. Written comments should 
identify the agenda item number. Comments received prior to the meeting will be read during the 
meeting. Comments received after the deadline will be included in the record but not read during the 
meeting. If participating in the meeting, public comment will also be received during the meeting. 

Time Set Items:  
  9:15 am 
10:00 am 
11:00 am 
1:00 pm 

Item   
8.1d   McNamara & Peepe Glendale Property 
8.1aii  Trinidad Rancheria Feasibility Study 
10.1   Engineering  
9.1     Quagga Prevention Plan letter  
10.3c Maintenance Supervisor report  2:00 pm 

The Board will take a scheduled lunch break from 12:00 pm to 1:00 pm 

Page 2 of 245Page 2 of 245

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88021681583?pwd=Q3VRVXh2MWVQclhNRzU3TTlYNGJCUT09


1. ROLL CALL

2. FLAG SALUTE

3. ACCEPT AGENDA

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public are invited to address the Board on items not listed on the agenda that are within
the scope and jurisdiction of the District.  At the discretion of the President, comments may be limited to
three minutes per person.  The public will be given the opportunity to address items that are on the
agenda at the time the Board takes up that item. Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board may not take
action on any item that does not appear on the agenda.

5. MINUTES
5.1 Minutes of July 8, 2021 Regular Meeting-discuss and possibly approve* 
5.2 Minutes of July 9, 2021 Special Joint Board Meeting with RLCSD- discuss and possibly approve* 

6. CONSENT AGENDA-These matters are routine in nature and are usually approved by a combined
single vote
6.1 Media articles of local/water interest* 

7. CORRESPONDENCE
7.1 FERC letter to HBMWD Re: 2021 Dam Safety Inspection Follow-up dated 7/13/21 - discuss* 
7.2 FERC letter to the District approving spillway superficial maintenance repair project for R.W. 

Matthews Dam - discuss* 
7.3 HBMWD letter to NCRA Re: NCRA Commercial License Amendment - discuss* 
7.4 HBMWD letter re: Nordic Aquafarms and the Mad River Flows - discuss* 
7.5 HBMWD letter to loggers re: solicitation for work at TRF - discuss* 
7.6 HBMWD letter in support of Mad River August Complex Restoration Project #60286 - discuss* 
7.7 Cal OES letter to HBMWD re: timelines for COVID grant updates - discuss* 
7.8 City of Arcata 2020 Urban Water Management Plan - discuss* 
7.9 HBMWD Quagga Progress Report dated 7-19-21 - discuss* 
7.10 HBMWD letter to RLCSD Re: California Quagga Infestation map – discuss* 

8. CONTINUING BUSINESS
8.1     Water Resource Planning-status report on water use options under consideration*

a. Local Sales
i. Nordic Aquafarms update - discuss

ii. Trinidad Rancheria Feasibility Study update - (Time set 10:00 am)
1. Correspondence to Trinidad Rancheria Re: Water Mainline Extension

Analysis – discuss*
2. Mainline Extension Agreement (MEA)– discuss and possibly approve

MEA*
3. Correspondence sent to City of Trinidad’s Water Advisory Committee –

discuss*

 
Page 3 of 245
 
Page 3 of 245



b. Transport – update 
c. Instream Flow Committee  

i. NMFS meeting report 
ii. CDFW meeting report 

iii. Public outreach with Institute of Local Governments -discuss and possibly 
approve* 

d. McNamara and Peepe – discuss (Time Set 9:15 am)  
i. Acknowledgement of Document submission to Envirostar - discuss* 

ii. Ground water sampling results – discuss and possibly direct staff to draft 
response letter to DTSC* 

8.2 Ruth Lake Emergency Declaration – 
a. Extension request for Natural Resource Conservation Service (NCRS)- Ruth Lake 

Emergency Watershed Program (EWP) Project - discuss* 
b. Cal Fire Notice of Inspection - discuss* 

8.3 Drought –  
a. Humboldt County Supervisors declare drought emergency – discuss* 
b. Local articles regarding drought – discuss* 

               
9.  NEW BUSINESS 
9.1  Ruth Lake CSD request for financial support for Quagga Prevention Plan costs – discuss response 

letter* (TIME SET 1:00 pm) 
 
10.  REPORTS (from Staff)   
10.1 Engineering (Time set 11:00 am)   

a. 12kV Switchgear Replacement ($755,832 District Match) – status report 
i. Change Order #5 - discuss* 

ii. GHD credit for test switch change order - discuss* 
b. Collector 2 Communications Underground – NCRA License – Status Report 
c. Collector Mainline Redundancy Hazard Mitigation Grant ($790,570 District Match)– status 

report* 
d. Reservoir Structural Retrofit Hazard Mitigation Grant ($914,250 District Match)-status report* 
e. TRF Generator Hazard Mitigation Grant ($460,431 District Match) – status report 
f. Appeal of FEMA Funding Denial for Collector 4 Emergency Restoration Work-status report 
g. R.W. Matthews Dam Spillway Retrofit Scoping Project HMG Advance Assistance Program—status 

report* 
h. Status report re: other engineering work in progress 

 
10.2    Financial   

a. Financial Report– accept July 2021 financial statement & vendor detail report - discuss and 
possibly accept* 

b. Review revised Project Budget reallocation FY 20-21 – discuss and possibly approve* 
c. HBMWD letter to municipal customers Re: estimated wholesale water charges, and price factor 2 

– discuss* 
d. Hydro plant financial analysis – discuss*  

 
 

 
Page 4 of 245
 
Page 4 of 245



10.3   Operations 
a. Monthly report on projects and operations– discuss*
b. Surplus of District computers – discuss and possibly approve surplus*
c. Maintenance Supervisor presentation: Pipeline Inspections – discuss (Time Set 2:00 pm)

11. MANAGEMENT
11.1   ACWA

a. Fall Conference 2021 – discuss and possibly approve attendance*
b. National Special Districts Coalition letter in support of H.R. 3534, the Wildfire Emergency

Act – discuss and possibly approve joining coalition letter*
c. ACWA comment letter on US Department of Treasury’s Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal

Recovery Funds Interim Final Rule (TREAS-DO-2021-0008-0002) – discuss*
d. Coalition letter in opposition to H.R. 2467, the PFAS Action Act of 2021 – discuss and

possibly join coalition letter*
11.2   CSDA 

a. Humboldt Area Chapter participation in the State Seal of Civic Engagement – discuss and
possibly approve participation and support of State Seal of Civic Engagement*

11.3   Annie and Mary Trail Connectivity Project– discuss* 

12. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION
12.1   General comments or reports from Directors
12.2   ACWA

a. Nomination of J. Bruce Rupp to Finance Committee – discuss and possibly approve
Resolution 2021-15*

b. Nomination of J. Bruce Rupp to Membership Committee – discuss and possibly approve
Resolution 2021-16*

12.3   ACWA – JPIA 
12.4   Organizations on which HBMWD Serves: 

a. RCEA- status report*
b. RREDC-status report*

ADJOURNMENT  
ADA compliance statement: In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office at (707) 443-5018. Notification 
48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting.  

(Posted and mailed August 6, 2021) 

 
Page 5 of 245
 
Page 5 of 245



Minutes 

 
Page 6 of 245
 
Page 6 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 1 

1. Roll Call 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 am, and was conducted within all Brown Act requirements. Time 
Set items were noted and Roll Call was taken. 
 

Members Present:  
Director Bruce Rupp 
Director Michelle Fuller  
Director David Lindberg 
Director Sheri Woo 

Members Absent: 
None 

Director Neal Latt 
 
Staff: 
John Friedenbach, General Manager  
Dale Davidsen, Superintendent 
Chris Harris, Business Manager  
Heather Bitner, Board Secretary  
Dee Dee Simpson, Accounting and HR Assistant 
 

Others Present: 
Nathan Stevens, GHD 
Matt Hagemann, SWAPE 
Jennifer Kalt, Humboldt Baykeeper 
Linda Miller, public member 
Madison O’Ferrell, public member 
 
 

Due to Time Set Items, the agenda items were addressed out of chronological order. 
 
2. Flag Salute  
The meeting began with a flag salute. 
 
3. Accept Agenda 
On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Latt, the Board Accepted the Agenda for the July 8, 
2021 Special Meeting by the following Roll Call Vote:    

 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director Lindberg    AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 

 
There was no public comment. 
 
4. Public Comment 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 7 of 245
 
Page 7 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 2 

5. Minutes 
5.1: Minutes of May 20, 2021 Special Meeting 
On motion by Director Lindberg, seconded by Director Fuller, the Board Approved the Minutes for the 
May 20, 2021 Regular meeting, by the following Roll Call Vote:  

 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 

 
There was no public comment. 
 
5.2: Minutes of June 10, 2021 Regular Meeting  
On motion by Director Lindberg, seconded by Director Fuller, the Board Approved the Minutes as 
corrected and amended for the June 10, 2021 Regular meeting, by the following Roll Call Vote:  

 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 

 
There was no public comment. 
 
6: Consent Agenda 
The article regarding Quagga Mussel infestations was referenced.  A map of the different locations in 
California that are known to have been infested with Quagga Zebra mussels was requested.  The map 
will be provided to the RLCSD for their inspectors, as well  
 
On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Latt the Board Approved the Consent Agenda by the 
following Roll Call Vote:  

Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 

 
There was no public comment. 
 
7: Correspondence 
7.1 Attorney rate increase:  
The Minasian Law Firm is a consultant the District has used for technical advice in the past. The District 
utilizes various law firms depending on the area of technical expertise required for a specific issue. No action 
is needed at this time. 

 
Page 8 of 245
 
Page 8 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 3 

 
7.2 District letter to Planning Commission re Arcata Land Company CUP:  
A comment letter to the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors was sent by Mr. Friedenbach to inform them 
that the previous Simpson Timber property includes the District’s municipal and industrial water lines, which 
cross the property. Development is being proposed in the vicinity of the District’s pipelines.  The District has 
easement rights that include certain restrictions for construction of permanent structures on, over or limiting 
access to maintain, operate or replace District water lines.  The District will work with the new owner 
regarding this and providing water to the property.   
 
If the District supplies water to the project, a change of use is not required to the District’s current water 
right permit since the project is within the District’s service area.   
 
7.3 State Water Board Notice of Extension of Water Shutoff Moratorium – Governor Newsom has 
extended the moratorium on shutting off delinquent accounts, and proposes funding to help customers pay 
their past due water bills.  Funding will go directly to Districts on behalf of the delinquent customers. 
 
7.4 CalOES letter of approval for COVID-19 assistance – The District’s request for reimbursement for 
District expenses related to COVID-19 was approved by CalOES. 
 
7.5 District outreach letter for the 3-acre conversion at the TRF –  
Staff provided a draft letter for Board review and approval which will be sent to the neighbors surrounding 
the TRF to provide outreach regarding the Timber Harvest Plan. 
 
On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Latt the Board approved the District outreach letter 
for a 3-acre conversion at the TRF, with edits, by the following Roll Call Vote:  

Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 

 
There was no public comment. 
 
8. Continuing Business  
8.1     Water Resource Planning-status report on water use options under consideration 
 

a. Local Sales  
i. Nordic Aquafarms update:  

CEQA permitting is moving forward.  District staff met with the Humboldt County Planning Dept. and their 
consultants regarding the County’s preparation of an EIR for the project.  The topics discussed related to the 
District’s capability to provide water through the domestic and industrial systems to the project.  The 
National Marine Fisheries Services (NMFS) requested to the County that an impact study of the Mad River 
with regards to the supply being provided to Nordic be prepared.  District staff relayed to the County that the 
District has an approved Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) which covers our activities to supply water to the 
Nordic project, and the water to be supplied to the Nordic project is within the District’s water rights. 
 
Page 9 of 245
 
Page 9 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 4 

 
There have been some misstatements in the community regarding the District’s water supply capabilities.  A 
fact sheet will be prepared communicating minimum flows as required in the District’s HCP and sent to 
Nordic. 
 

ii. Trinidad Rancheria Feasibility Study update - (Time set 10:00 am) 
 
Staff has performed the preliminary draft calculations and will review with the Trinidad Rancheria staff.  The 
next step will be to draft the Mainline Extension Agreement (MEA) with McKinleyville CSD (MCSD) and 
Trinidad Rancheria.  Caltrans staff still need to meet with District and Rancheria staff to discuss a potential 
water line right of way. 
 
There is currently a 6” water line on the West side of Hwy 101 that is fed by an 8” line on the East side of Hwy 
101 through MCSD.  The most cost- effective placement of the pipeline would be to utilize the Caltrans right 
of way along a planned footbridge trail to cross the Little River and transport water along the West side of 
Hwy 101. There will be one booster pump station to maintain elevation for delivery.   
 
If the MEA is approved by the HBMWD Board, it will then go to the Trinidad Rancheria’s Board, who will fully 
manage and fund the project through permitting and completion of construction.  The infrastructure is then 
deeded back to the District who will retain responsibility for maintenance of the pipeline and water supply in 
the future.  The water will be “wheeled” through MCSD pipelines until it reaches the new pipeline. 
 
The City of Trinidad water committee has contacted the District regarding potential ability to connect to the 
line.  Mr. Friedenbach responded that the City of Trinidad must approve participation in the waterline 
feasibility study in order to participate.  The Trinidad City Council has previously voted twice to not 
participate. 
 
The Board directed staff to consult with District counsel regarding an obligation to provide water outside of 
the District’s service area, and whether the Water Code references any such obligation. 
 

b. Transport – There was nothing to report out. 
c. Instream Flow –  

 
The edited goals for the proposed amendments to the HCP are being edited by the Instream Flow Committee 
and consultants. The consultants believe there is a strong case to make an amendment to the HCP, rather 
than to create a new one.  The main goals of the amendment are to draft additional Biological Goals and 
Objectives including: 
• Provide aquatic habitat conditions in mainstem Mad River that contribute to the recovery of covered 

species; and 
• Provide habitat resilience for river biome to ameliorate the effects of climate change.  
 
Meetings with the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (CDFW) are to be held this month to gain input from those agencies concerning the amended HCP. 
Any species of concern with juveniles present in the river will be included in the HCP amendment, as 
determined by the biologists.  A question regarding the Arcata gauge belonging to the USGS and potential 
 
Page 10 of 245
 
Page 10 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 5 

inconsistencies with monitoring flow was brought forward. Staff will research and report back to the Board.  
Additional public outreach discussions will be conducted regarding the proposed HCP amendment when 
complete. 
 

d. McNamara and Peepe – (Time Set 9:15 am)  
i. California Drinking Water Standards: Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) vs. Public 

Health Guidelines (PHG)  
Staff introduced the memo with definitions of MCL and PHG, including the District’s 2020 Consumer 
Confidence Report, which is the report of drinking water quality required by the State.  The report is provided 
to our customers including the seven wholesale municipalities who in turn create their own CCR based on any 
additives and/or local testing requirements. At the Board’s request, the District’s CCR will be provided 
annually to the Board. 
 

ii. District letter to DTSC requesting quarterly testing  
 
Director Woo recused herself due to a remote conflict at the beginning of the topic and returned at the end. 
Director Woo is employed by SHN Engineers and Geologists, which performs work on the McNamara and 
Peepe site.  Director Woo is a SHN minority shareholder and her conflict is remote.  
 
Mr. Friedenbach worked with Mr. Hagemann (from the company Soil/Water/Air Protection Enterprise 
(SWAPE)) on a draft letter to the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) requesting regular testing 
for the McNamara and Peepe site.  Groundwater sampling results were released after publication of the 
Board packet and will be forwarded.  The Board provided clarifying edits to the draft letter. 
 
Discussion of the Board and Mr. Hagemann concluded that DTSC should understand that dioxins leaving this 
site are unacceptable.  Although the testing levels are below the MCL, the fact that dioxins were present in 
ground water is very concerning.  This contamination represents many years of not effectively completing the 
cleanup of the site by DTSC.  The Board expressed a sense of urgency be included in the letter to DTSC. 
 
Jennifer Kalt suggested that the table used (from the SHN report) is not clear enough for the public.  As the 
sampling has shown to have left the site, this shows the original failure of the DTSC cleanup. It is important 
that the cleanup is finalized before any contamination reaches the District water supply.   
 
Linda Miller, a public member thanked the Board for their efforts and for including sediment sampling and 
environmental screening for aquatic species. There are Listed Species and Species of Special Concern which 
live in Hall Creek that require consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 11 of 245
 
Page 11 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 6 

On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Lindberg, the Board approved the District letter to 
DTSC requesting quarterly testing, with edits, by the following Roll Call Vote:  

 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    RECUSED 

 
There was no public comment. 
 
8.2 Ruth Lake Emergency Declaration –    

a. USFS Mad River August Complex Restoration Project –  
USFS has provided a solicitation for public comment on the Mad River area restoration project.  The Board 
has directed staff to provide comment on the project and possible impacts to water quality in Ruth Lake.  A 
considerable amount of forest debris will be left after salvage logging that may get caught in the log boom. 
Soil erosion impacts to water quality is another area of concern.  The potential impact to the Mad River 
Watershed should be addressed.  It appears the amount of proposed reforestation is less than 2% of the total 
acreage burned. 
 
Madison O’Ferrell, a public member, clarified that the private property members will not be included in the 
proposed project.  There is an USFS meeting regarding the project tonight. 
 
The District continues to promote entering into a good neighbor agreement with USFS, and also partner on 
future grant applications. 

 
b. Shoreline Debris Removal –  

Information was provided to FEMA for the disaster recovery at Ruth Lake to remove woody debris that is 
making its way to the shoreline around Ruth Lake and potentially impact the log boom. Funding is being 
requested for the debris removal.  An estimation of the volume was ascertained by using photos of the 
perimeter of the lake condition with on-site visual sampling by BBW Associates.  Work will commence 
Fall, 2021. There was no public comment. 

 
8.3 Local drought conditions –  
Staff introduced the daily operations report describing flow releases to the Mad River.  A discrepancy 
between the dam flow releases and the USGS gauge was highlighted.  Mr. Friedenbagh pointed out that 
we need to determine how much the tributaries contribute to flow, and how much is lost due to 
evaporation, going into groundwater, diversions, etc. 
He recommended putting gauges into the major tributaries at some point in the future to collect data.  
This is a unique drought year and it would be a good opportunity to determine the amount of tributary 
flow in the Mad River.  District water rights depend on water contribution from the tributaries.  
Even at this year’s lower flows, there is more than enough water to continue supplying District wholesale 
customers.  Consumptive-use analysis for all registered water users was conducted as part of the 
Instream Flow work. There was no public comment. 
 
 
Page 12 of 245
 
Page 12 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 7 

9. New Business 
9.1 Closed Session: Threat to Public Services or Facilities - Gov. Code 54957 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session 3:44pm and returned to Open Session at 3:51pm.  There was no 
public comment.  
 
9.2 Report out from Closed Session- There was no reportable action, and no public comment. 
 
9.3 FERC Part 12D PFMA workshop report out –  
The District hosted a workshop with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), District staff, and 
consultants for the Probable Failure Mode Analysis (PFMA).  Situational analysis of scenarios is thought 
through in a group setting in order to prepare for potential dam failure.  The workshop is a component of the 
FERC Part 12D independent, third party safety evaluation of the dam and hydro plant.  The information from 
the workshop was presented during Closed Session, but is protected by Homeland Security critical 
infrastructure laws and not available to the public.  
 
9.4 Return to In-person Board meetings –  
The State (CalOSHA) has permitted reopening of public meetings, with a mix of vaccinated and non-
vaccinated people (who must be masked).  The Board will continue to meet virtually at the August meeting 
and revisit the issue of when to return to in person meetings. 
 
9.5 Samoa Peninsula Enhanced Infrastructure Financing District (EIFD) –  
County staff presented a Resolution of Intention by the Board of Supervisors to form an EIFD on the Samoa 
Peninsula.  The County’s timeline for implementation of the EIFD was shared with the Board. When the 
Harbor District purchased the former LP Pulp Mill site, it was a single property with water infrastructure for 
domestic and industrial water servicing one customer.  The subdivision of that property has created an issue 
in determining individual consumption of water for various tenants or property owners.  This new EIFD will 
facilitate financing new infrastructure.   
Typically, the (HBMWD) District would be eligible for incremental tax revenue from development, which 
is then passed through to the municipal customers as Price Factor 2 credits.  The intention of the County 
is to ask eligible entities to forego their incremental tax revenue to help fund the EIFD and infrastructure.  
The Board will be asked to consider this at a later meeting.  Staff will continue to monitor and report 
back when formation documents are pending. 
 
10. Reports from Staff  
10.1 Engineering (Time set 11:00 am) 

a. 12 kV Switchgear Replacement ($755,832 District Match)   
 
A payment request for $223,915 was presented.  Construction and coordination between the District, 
Contractors and PG&E staff are ongoing.  A backup generator is needed for a portion of the construction 
at the site in September during the time when the switchover from the old equipment to the new 
equipment is occurring. One key member of the subcontractor’s electrical team has been replaced.  
Construction is scheduled to be completed in November, 2021. 

 
Change order #4 to upgrade the SCADA 12-inch panel view to a 21” Rockwell SE View in the amount of 
$3,466 was provided. 

 
Page 13 of 245
 
Page 13 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 8 

 
b. Collector 2 Communications Underground – NCRA License  
Mr. Friedenbach introduced the proposed license amendment related to the new Collector 2 
communications upgrade along the railroad grade and into Park 1 on District property.  This item was 
continued to the Ruth Lake Joint meeting on July 9, 2021.  (Board Secretary note: this item was approved 
unanimously at the July 9, 2021 Board meeting.  See Minutes for July 9, 2021 for complete information.)  
 
c. Collector Mainline Redundancy Hazard Mitigation Grant ($790,570 District Match) –  

There was nothing to report out. 
 

d. Reservoirs Structural Retrofit Hazard Mitigation Grant ($914,250 District Match) –  
Phase 1 deliverables are due July 31, 2021 to provide everything to CalOES. Two separate bid 
packages (one for the domestic tanks and one for the industrial water tank) are being prepared to 
facilitate accurate cost accounting for the two systems.  FEMA’s NEPA process follows Phase 1 
deliverables, and then Phase 2 funding should be authorized.  
 

e. TRF Generator Hazard Mitigation Grant ($460,431 District Match) – The Request for Information 
(RFI)response has been sent to CalOES and a report will be provided when Phase 1 is authorized. 
 

f. Appeal of FEMA Funding Denial for Collector 4 Emergency Restoration Work –  
There was nothing to report out. 
 

g. R.W. Matthews Dam & Spillway Seismic Stability Analysis and Design HMGP Advance Assistance 
Project – A new RFI has been sent by CalOES requesting CEQA documents for environmental studies 
including cultural resources, biological, botanical, wetlands, etc.  This will require a revised match 
commitment letter due to increased cost. 
Additional RFI items include potential alternative seismic retrofits that are being considered.  The 
response is due to CalOES on July 14, 2021. 
 

h. Status report re: other engineering work in progress- There was nothing to report out. 
There was no public comment. 
 
10.2    Financial   

a. Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget reallocation –  
 
Ms. Harris presented the details showing the total funds available for reallocation are currently 
$735,510, and she will return next month with any adjustments resulting from finalizing the financials 
for FY21 if necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Page 14 of 245
 
Page 14 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 9 

On motion by Director Lindberg seconded by Director Rupp the Board approved the District Fiscal Year 
2020-21 budget reallocation by the following Roll Call Vote:  

 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 

 
There was no public comment. 
 

b. Fiscal year 2021-22 proposed budget  
 
Ms. Harris presented the complete draft of the FY2021/22 budget at the June 10, 2021 Board meeting for 
review and discussion.  Based on feedback, staff is presenting the proposed final budget for FY2021/22 with 
the following changes to the Project Budget –  

o Decrease of $25,000 in Advanced Charges for Collector Mainline Redundancy Grant Project to offset 
increase in Worker’s Compensation expense.  These advance charges were replaced through the 
Budget Reallocation process. 

o Change of Project – The project to purchase “500GB USB drives for external back-up for the 15 main 
servers ($2,000) has been cancelled.  Instead, external back-up coverage will be added to the 
contract with the company that is currently managing the limited time-based backups for these 
servers.  The cost of the additional storage for the saved data is expected to be $2,000.  This will be 
included in the “Technical Support and Software Updates” Project and will increase the charges from 
$27,000 to $29,000 (net impact to customer charges related to this change is $0.00).  

 
On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Fuller the Board approved the Fiscal year 2021-22 
proposed budget by the following Roll Call Vote:  

 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 

 
There was no public comment. 
 

c. Financial Report– accept June 2021 financial statement & vendor detail report –  
 

Ms. Harris presented the June 2021 Finance Report with a correction to the Restricted Fund Balances 
included in the packet.  The Advanced Charges for the 3x Tank Seismic Retrofit and the Redundant Pipeline 
are understated and the General Fund Reserves are overstated by the same amount.  This correction will be 
reflected next month. 
Director Latt reviewed the bills for June and did not have any questions. 
 
 
Page 15 of 245
 
Page 15 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 10 

On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Lindberg the Board approved June 2021 financial 
statement and vendor detail report in the amount of $407,379.98 by the following Roll Call Vote:  
 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp    AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 
 
There was no public comment. 
 

d. County Fund Balance from June 30, 2020 – The County fund balance was received and is one year in 
arrears. 

 
10.3   Operations 

a. Monthly report on projects and operations   
Superintendent Davidsen provided the Operations report.  There were two shutdowns at the hydro plant: 
one for maintenance and one for PG&E maintenance.  The TRF is offline for the season.  Great progress has 
been made in clearing out the homeless camp. 
 
Staff training included: 

• ASDOS webinar on remote sensing for dams with drones 
• JPIA - “Nuts and Bolts of Supervisor Law” 
• CPR and First Aid  

 
i. USEPA letter regarding critical water treatment chemicals –  

A National Chlorine shortage is being reported by the EPA.  Municipal water treatment will likely have 
legislative protection in the future, but at this time, the District is proactively managing it’s chlorine supply. 

b. Surplus District equipment –  
The Superintendent proposed surplusing the 2013 Landa high pressure washer as it is obsolete and 
has been replaced as authorized in the current project budget. 

On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Latt the Board approved the surplus of the 2013 Landa 
high pressure washer by the following Roll Call Vote:  
 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp    AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
 
 
 
Page 16 of 245
 
Page 16 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 

July 8, 2021  

 

 11 

11. Management 
a.      a. CSDA  

i. GM Summit report out – Staff attended the educational workshops in person.  Mr. 
Friedenbach thanked the Board for the opportunity to attend.  

ii. CSDA Annual Conference – This conference will be held in Monterey.  Staff and Board 
members have elected not to attend. 

 
There was no public comment. 
 

iii. Overview of State Budget passed by Legislature – nothing to report out 
b. Bill Sheppard memorial –  

Mr. Sheppard was a contractor for the District for many years. A donation from retired and current District 
staff is being provided to Blue Lake Volunteer Fire Department in memoriam.  No District funds are being 
expended. 

 
12.   Director Reports & Discussion 
12.1   General -comments or reports from Directors     
Regarding the USFS invoice for renting the USFS property under Ruth Lake, the Board recommends looking 
into possibly purchasing the property rather than paying each year for property the USFS cannot use again.     
 
12.2   ACWA 
Director Rupp attended the Membership Committee meeting of ACWA. The committee discussed member 
services and membership development. Director Rupp is the representative to the committee from Region 1. 
 

a. Resolution 2021-13: Nomination of Ms. Pam Tobin for President of ACWA Executive Board –  
 
On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Lindberg the Board Resolution 2021-13: Nomination of Ms. 
Pam Tobin for President of ACWA Executive Board was approved by the following Roll Call Vote:  
 
Director Michelle Fuller   AYE 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp    AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Page 17 of 245
 
Page 17 of 245



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors 
July 8, 2021 

12 

b. Resolution 2021-14: Nomination of Ms. Cathy Green for Vice-President of ACWA Executive Board-

On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Lindberg the Board approved Resolution 2021-14: 
Nomination of Ms. Cathy Green for Vice-President of ACWA Executive Board was approved by the following 
Roll Call Vote:  

Director Michelle Fuller AYE 
Director Neal Latt AYE 
Director David Lindberg AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp  AYE 
Director Sheri Woo  AYE 

There was no public comment. 

12.3   ACWA – JPIA  
Director Rupp attended the Property Insurance meeting.  They anticipate a 15% increase across all lines of 
insurance.  The District rate for Workers Comp is increasing based on the District’s Ex-Mod rating. Premium 
to the insurance pool for cyber coverage increased from $140,000 to $980,000. It was absorbed by the 
insurance pool for the next premium year but cyber coverage will be separated out in the future.  The 
Employee Benefits committee meeting will likely be voting on a 5% decrease to PPO rates.  Other benefit 
programs will have increases, but the amounts are not yet known. 

12.4   Organizations on which HBMWD Serves: 
a. RCEA – Director Woo attended an airport microgrid event.  She asked if future agenda items may

include a land acknowledgement.  Also brought forward were what kinds of majors are desired of the
HSU Polytechnic school?  Staff suggested water operator certification.

b. RREDC – The fiberoptic cable program is nearly complete but there is a delay from obtaining the right
of way from Hwy 255 at Samoa Peninsula to the Arcata data center. Caltrans offered to cede its right
of way for the project.

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 3:58 pm. 

Attest: 

_______________________________ ______________________________ 
Sheri Woo, President   J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer

 
Page 18 of 245
 
Page 18 of 245



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

Minutes for Joint Meeting of Board of Directors for 
HBMWD and Ruth Lake CSD 

July 9, 2021 

1 

1. Introductions and Roll Call
The meeting was called to order at 1:00 pm, and was conducted within all Brown Act requirements. All
participants introduced themselves.

HBMWD Board Members Present: 
Director Bruce Rupp 
Director David Lindberg 
Director Sheri Woo 
Director Neal Latt 

HBMWD Board Members Absent: 
Director Michelle Fuller  

HBMWD Staff: 
John Friedenbach, General Manager  
Dale Davidsen, Superintendent 
Chris Harris, Business Manager  
Heather Bitner, Board Secretary  
Sherrie Sobol, Regulatory and Program Analyst 
Dee Dee Simpson, Accounting and HR Assistant 
Larry Raschein, Ruth-Hydro Operator 
Adam Jager, Emergency Mad River Watershed 
Restoration Supervisor 
Dave Perkins, Ruth Hydro Operator 
Janet Powell, Ruth Hydro Operator

RLCSD Board Members Present: 
Director Susan Gordon 
Director Debra Sellman 
Director Brian Nicholson 
Director Jordan Emory 

RLCSD Staff: 
Caitlin Canale, General Manager 
Cindy Lofthous, Board Secretary 

Others Present: 
Tim Saxon, Trinity County Sheriff 
Bryan Ward, Trinity County Sheriff office 
Ed Prestley, Trinity County OES 
Dan Frasier, Trinity County Supervisor 
Brandon Lale, CHP Commander 
Kristen Lark, USFS Mad River Ranger District 
Lejon Hamann, USFS 
Darroll Meyer, Southern Trinity VFD 
Melody Higgins, Southern Trinity VFD 
Madison O’Ferrell, NVCSS 
Dave Saunderson, LHA 
Dean Petersen, public member 
Ed Johnston, public member 
Natalie Kiser, public member 

2. Public Comment
A public comment regarding the easement between the Pachenco residence and the residence next
door, noted that there are a number of people depositing potential hazardous debris who are not
supposed to be there and the debris may pose a liability for the District.

3. Updates from Guests:
a. Trinity County 5th District Supervisor, Dan Frasier, reported out that Environmental Health has

reported that cyanobacterial toxin (blue green algae) levels at Ruth Lake, taken on July 2, 2021,
were found to be lower than previously reported.  Also, existing septic systems can be replaced
during the rebuilding process provided the structure size remains unchanged.

b. US Forest Service – Kristen Lark announced that the new chief of the USFS, Randy Moore, is the
first African- American to hold the position and the first from the Six Rivers Forest.  USFS has

 
Page 19 of 245
 
Page 19 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Joint Meeting of Board of Directors for  

HBMWD and Ruth Lake CSD 
July 9, 2021 

 

 

 2 

partnered with HBMWD to apply for a California Climate Initiatives-Healthy Forest grant.  They 
have an open public comment period for the Environmental Assessment for work being done 
after the August Complex. Additional funding is being sought for fuels reduction efforts.  The 
2021 Capitol Christmas tree, which will be in Washington DC, will be from the Six Rivers National 
Forest, and they are requesting ornaments and tree skirts be donated. 

c. Trinity County Volunteer Fire Department and /or STAR – They are looking for a water tender, 
and to surplus the old trucks.  Chief Higgins questioned whether there was an updated policy 
regarding water storage tanks for fire suppression, and if there might be grants for hydrants or 
water storage tanks. 

d. Trinity County Sheriff/OES – Sherriff Tim Saxon discussed the lack of personnel to patrol regularly 
around Ruth Lake. There are three new reserves who are patrolling the lake as they can.  They 
may have a resident deputy candidate but it will be over a year before they are able to take a 
resident post.  Allied agencies provide support as needed, and the volunteer Search and Rescue 
group has grown.     
Ed Presley, OES manager, shared that Trinity County has been added to the Drought 
Conservation declaration.  August Complex recovery has been ongoing.  Citizenry are encouraged 
to report out any hint of a fire so it can be addressed immediately. 
Madison O’Ferrell introduced that the North Valley Catholic Center is an organization that assists 
with resources needed for fire recovery. 

e. Ruth Lake Leaseholders Association – The Association is again active after seven years of not 
meeting.  Mr. Saunderson complimented the efforts by Adam Jager, and provided the website 
address for the group. They are in the process of updating their bylaws. 

f. Any other guests- CHP Commander, Brandon Lale shared that there is mutual aid with other 
agencies to assist when coverage is thin.  CHP operational responsibilities are in a huge territory 
and they may have a response time of up to two hours.  There isn’t a scheduled patrol routine 
for the Mad River area.  If the community can specify a time frame with the biggest issues, they 
can allocate resources to that area.  CHP have lost a large amount of personnel in CA this year, 
with staffing levels estimated to be that of the 1970’s.  They are hiring qualified applicants.  A 
member of the public requested a lower speed zone with patrols to enforce consequences in the 
vicinity of the entrance to the Ruth Lake Marina. 

 
4. HBMWD Topics 
4.1  Amended License Agreement with North Coast Rail Authority for Collector 2 

Communication Project  
On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Lindberg, the Board Approved the Amended License 
Agreement with North Coast Rail Authority for Collector 2 Communication Project, by the following 
Roll Call Vote:  

 
Director Michelle Fuller   ABSENT 
Director Neal Latt    AYE 
Director David Lindberg   AYE 
Director Bruce Rupp   AYE 
Director Sheri Woo    AYE 

 
 
Page 20 of 245
 
Page 20 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Joint Meeting of Board of Directors for  

HBMWD and Ruth Lake CSD 
July 9, 2021 

 

 

 3 

There was no public comment. 
 
4.2  Aquatic Invasive Species: 

a. Dept. of Boating and Waterways Quagga Prevention Grants –  
Since Fiscal Year 2015-16, the District has received $104,000 in grants for Quagga Prevention 
at the lake.  Funding has been used for improvements, communication equipment, keycard 
and stickers, etc.  RLCSD implements the plan on behalf of the District and provides 
documentation for reimbursement from the grant.    

b. Any issues or areas of concern  
District staff was questioned about access to the lake once salvage logging has been 
completed.  Larger granite boulders will be installed.  RLCSD was asked to provide a list of 
known access points where needed.  Signage for educational purposes was requested for the 
campgrounds by the Forest Service.  District staff was asked whether cable and K-Rails would 
be a feasible solution for limiting access points.  

4.3 Disaster Recovery  
Adam Jager provided an update of the properties that are being salvage logged.  Regarding 
lease lot sign off, soil sampling is delayed for all the state which is delaying the process.  If 
the footprint hasn’t changed for rebuilding, permitting will likely be fast-tracked.  Changes in 
rebuilding requests will cause delays.  A public member questioned which trees will be 
removed.  OES has a list of about 80,000 trees that still need to be removed. 
The District has applied for a $5 million Healthy Forest grant to reforest Ruth Lake. It will take 
decades to recover from the fire. Concerns about the level of cleanup by the loggers was 
discussed. 

4.4 Law Enforcement on Ruth Lake -This topic was discussed during the Trinity County Sheriff’s, 
and CHP Commander’s report out. 

4.5 Cannabis Cultivation in the Mad River Watershed  
The fires have exposed activities around the lake including illegal cannabis grows.  Any 
cultivation is prohibited on District property and water siphoning for that purpose is 
requested to be reported. 

5.  Ruth Lake CSD Topics 
5.1   Lease Lots: area of concern 

Caitlin Canale reported that there was a lot of concern over rebuilding.   Septic systems are a 
concern, as is cleanup after the salvage logging. 
A request was made to provide a single list that included all requirements for rebuilding from 
RLCSD, HBMWD and the county; and to develop a policy with standards for privacy screening 
for lease lots that have no vegetation due to fire.   
RLCSD posed the question of who would be responsible for damage to property during 
salvage logging.  Depending on who was responsible, let the party who hired the logger or 
other contractor know of the problem.   

 
Page 21 of 245
 
Page 21 of 245



 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
828 7th Street, Eureka 

  
Minutes for Joint Meeting of Board of Directors for  

HBMWD and Ruth Lake CSD 
July 9, 2021 

 

 

 4 

 
5.2   Discussion of a long-term maintenance plan for the Quagga Mussel Prevention Plan  

RLCSD requested financial support from HBMWD for the implementation of the Quagga 
Prevention Plan.  As Quagga Prevention is a risk assumed with recreation, the Trinity County 
Master Lease Agreement required RLCSD to assume all responsibility.  HBMWD has assisted 
by finding Quagga Program grant funding.  RLCSD could also apply for grant funding.  RLCSD 
is able to generate its own revenue and allocate accordingly.   
A public comment was read into the record and is attached to the Minutes.   
HBMWD noted that specific requests can be presented to the District so that they can be 
considered for action at a Board meeting  
 

 
Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 2:48pm. 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Sheri Woo, President     J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer 

 
Page 22 of 245
 
Page 22 of 245



Consent 

 
Page 23 of 245
 
Page 23 of 245



‘We are very fortunate with our water supply’: 
Ruth Reservoir at 87% capacity 

 
As California communities struggle to meet water demands amid ongoing drought 
conditions, Ruth Reservoir, the primary water source for much of Humboldt County, has 
remained resilient. As of Aug. 3, Ruth Reservoir is at 87% capacity, slightly above the 
10-year average. (Contributed — Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District) 
 
Times-Standard: By ISABELLA VANDERHEIDEN   
August 4, 2021  

As wells and reservoirs dry up across California amid worsening drought conditions, 
Ruth Reservoir, which provides water for most of Humboldt County’s population 
centers, is at 87% capacity — exactly where it should be. 

John Friedenbach, general manager of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, 
said Ruth Reservoir has remained resilient through the drought. 

“We’re one of the very few reservoirs throughout the state that did actually fill to 
capacity this rainy season,” he said. “This year, we are a little bit lower in lake 
elevation than last year at 87% as of Aug. 3, but we are still above the 10-year 
average. We’re not experiencing the effects of the drought in terms of lake level, we’re 
still doing normal operations in terms of releases from the lake. I would add that in the 
60-year history of Ruth Lake, it has filled every year except once.” 

 
Page 24 of 245
 
Page 24 of 245

https://www.times-standard.com/author/isabella-vanderheiden/


Ruth Reservoir annual elevation (Contributed — Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District) 
 

Once the lake fills after the winter rains, the water district follows a release regimen to 
augment flows in the Mad River.  

“There is no water coming into the lake at this point in the season,” Friedenbach said. 
“That’s normal. At this point this season, we’re strictly running off of stored water and 
that is the purpose of the lake, to impound water during the winter and then release 
during the summer when there are low flows in the river.” 

The water district pumps approximately 8 million gallons of water from the Mad River 
per day through “Ranney Wells.” These wells draw water from the sands and gravel of 
the aquifer under the riverbed at depths of 60 to 90 feet, Friedenbach explained. 
Approximately 22% of the water drawn is diverted for domestic consumption. 

“At this rate, we have plenty of water in the reservoir to make it well into the next year, 
if necessary,” he said. “We are in a good position here in our service area. We are 
very fortunate with our water supply. I wish we could offer comfort to other districts 
that aren’t as fortunate as ours to have a reliable water supply but it’s a tough issue 
statewide.” 

 
Page 25 of 245
 
Page 25 of 245



When asked whether the water district could provide water to struggling districts for 
emergency use, Friedenbach said, “It’s complicated.” 

“There’s a couple of challenges in transporting water to other districts,” he said. “The 
first of which is the state of California controls water rights and they basically grant a 
water right to provide water for beneficial use within a certain geographic area. Our 
district’s boundaries go as far south as College of the Redwoods, north to 
McKinleyville, east to Blue Lake and west to the Samoa Peninsula. For anything 
outside of that geographic boundary, we would have to apply to the state for a new 
beneficial use location.” 

For example, if the Garberville Sanitary District asked Humboldt Bay Municipal Water 
District for water, the districts would have to apply to the state. Assuming the state 
granted the change, the districts would have to figure out how to transport the water. 

“On a short-term basis you would use water tankers but there aren’t a lot of water 
tankers in Humboldt County. I think there’s one that’s a 5,000-gallon tank, another 
3,000-gallon tanker and several smaller than that but it’s expensive,” he said. “A few 
years ago, the Westhaven Community Services District had a leak in their system and 
they had to truck in water. I think they had to truck in about 70,000 gallons a day. If 
you have one tanker at 5,000 gallons, another at 3,000 and they have to make 10 
trips a day to satisfy demand, that’s a lot of trips.” 

A two-hour roundtrip to Garberville would be “logistically very challenging,” he said. 
 

 
Page 26 of 245
 
Page 26 of 245



Humboldt County warns of public health 
concerns related to drought 
By THE TIMES-STANDARD | 
July 13, 2021  

The following is a press release from the Humboldt County Department of Health and 
Human Services: 

On May 10, 2021, California Gov. Gavin Newsom expanded the drought emergency 
proclamation to 41 counties, including Humboldt. With this proclamation comes 
acknowledgment that droughts can cause changes to communities and the 
environment that impact public health. 

Reduced stream flows increase the concentration of pollutants in water and cause 
stagnation and elevated water temperatures. While warmer waters can be 
comfortable to swim in, they can also increase the growth of some pathogens 
including V. cholera, N. fowleri, Giardia, Cryptosporidium, Campylobacter, Salmonella 
and harmful algal blooms, leading to reduced oxygen levels that threaten fish and 
other aquatic life and can be harmful to animals and people. Lower water levels can 
also increase the risk of injury by jumping or diving. Before swimming in rivers, lakes 
or streams, follow these tips: 

• Verify water is deep and clear of debris before diving 
• Avoid swallowing river, lake or stream water or inhaling water spray while 

swimming 
• Avoid wading and swimming in water containing algal blooms 
• Shower after returning from a day on the water 
• Seek medical attention immediately if you think that you, your pet or livestock 

might have been poisoned by harmful algal blooms. Be sure to tell the doctor 
about possible contact with harmful algae. 

• Never drink, cook with or wash dishes with water from rivers, streams or lakes. 
Many residents in Humboldt County rely on groundwater, springs and the region’s 
many rivers and tributaries to meet their residential, agricultural and industrial water 
needs. With low precipitation and increased evaporation of surface water, 
groundwater supplies are not replenished at a reliable rate. As a result, drinking water 
supplied from private wells and surface water diversions may be at higher risk for 
drought-related infectious disease. 

People who are elderly, very young or have a compromised immune system may be 
susceptible to waterborne disease(s). The Humboldt County Department of Health & 
Human Services, Division of Environmental Health (DEH) recommends the following 
actions to maximize public health protections: 

• Periodically check water supply lines and fixtures for leaks 

 
Page 27 of 245
 
Page 27 of 245

https://www.times-standard.com/author/the-times-standard/


• Periodically send drinking water samples to an accredited lab for bacteriological 
testing 

• Implement additional water treatment measures to domestic drinking water 
supplies 

• Implement water-saving techniques (e.g. rainwater catchment, greywater 
diversion) to decrease water demand. 

For more information, call DEH at 707-445-6215 or 800-963-9241. 
 

 
Page 28 of 245
 
Page 28 of 245



Humboldt County supervisors to talk action on 
drought, low river levels 
Declaration could impact future commercial pot grows using 
groundwater wells 

 
As drought conditions worsen across California, Humboldt County officials are seeking 
solutions to ease environmental impacts. The maps above compare current drought 
conditions (left) to July 2020. (U.S. Drought Monitor) 
 
By ISABELLA VANDERHEIDEN | Times-Standard 
July 19, 2021  

As historic drought conditions grip California, the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors 
will consider the proclamation of a countywide drought emergency Tuesday. The 
combination of rising temperatures and drying conditions have contributed to lower than 
average river levels and increased fire potential throughout the county. 

During the board’s May 25 meeting, supervisors established a drought task force to 
monitor worsening drought conditions and directed staff to investigate the creation of a 
position to address climate resiliency. The board did not agree that a drought emergency 
declaration was necessary despite worsening conditions and Gov. Gavin Newsom’s 
decision to extend the state’s drought emergency proclamation to include Humboldt 
County on May 10. 
“The local proclamation is the first step in recognizing and declaring that action is 
needed,” the staff report stated. “… By proclaiming a local emergency for drought, this will 
signify to the entire county that we are experiencing a crisis and are likely to see 
worsening impacts in the months to come. A local proclamation opens the door for 

 
Page 29 of 245
 
Page 29 of 245

https://www.times-standard.com/author/isabella-vanderheiden/
https://www.times-standard.com/2021/05/25/humboldt-county-supes-call-for-drought-task-force/


immediate response and mitigation actions to be implemented through local policy and 
will better enable us to dedicate staff time towards addressing drought-related issues.” 

The majority of the state is now reporting extreme to exceptional drought conditions, 
according to the U.S. Drought Monitor. Only four pockets – including portions of 
Humboldt, Del Norte, Mendocino and Trinity Counties report moderate to severe 
conditions.  

The proposed proclamation provides a brief synopsis of current and projected drought-
related impacts and outlines several proposed actions to address short, medium and 
long-term impacts to protect water reserves and help maintain critical flows for fish. 

The drought task force recommended a moratorium on well permitting for non-domestic 
uses as well as the development of a new well-permitting criteria. 

“In Humboldt County, we rely on groundwater, springs, and rivers and tributaries to meet 
residential, agricultural, and industrial water needs. With low precipitation and increased 
evaporation of surface water, groundwater supplies may not be replenished at a reliable 
rate,” the staff report said. “… Homeowners relying on groundwater wells in some areas 
within Humboldt County are already seeing diminishing performance. If the drought 
persists (which we anticipate will likely occur), some families and commercial users will be 
forced to haul water to meet their essential needs, which is an expensive and 
unsustainable endeavor.” 

The issue of well permitting extends to cannabis cultivators as well. 

“In 2016, the first year of cannabis permitting, there was a significant increase in the 
number of well permits and the number of well permits for the last five years is nearly 
double that of the previous five years,” the staff report said. “The public is expressing 
concern with continued permitting of cannabis farms utilizing wells as the water source. 
The primary concern is whether the water used to irrigate cannabis will result in their 
domestic wells being adversely affected.” 

According to the county’s commercial cannabis land use rules, the county reserves the 
right to curtail commercial cannabis activity “in the event that environmental conditions, 
such as a sustained drought or low flows in the watershed where the commercial 
cannabis activity is located, will not support water withdrawals without substantially 
adversely affecting existing fish and wildlife resources.” 

The staff report noted that a sustainable water source should not include groundwater 
wells and recommended the board prevent the cultivation of any new, additional crops 
this year when the source of water is a groundwater well. 

The drought task force’s presentation is time set for 10 a.m. Tuesday. The meeting can 
be viewed at humboldt.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. 
Isabella Vanderheiden can be reached at 707-441-0504. 

 

 
Page 30 of 245
 
Page 30 of 245

http://humboldt.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx


 
Page 31 of 245
 
Page 31 of 245



$16.5 million secured for Great Redwood Trail 
project 

 
The Great Redwood Trail will rehabilitate approximately 300 miles of unused railroad 
line into hiking trails. (Will Houston — The Times-Standard file) 
 
By MARIO CORTEZ |  Times-Standard 
PUBLISHED: July 2, 2021  

A total of $16.5 million in state funds has been secured for the Great Redwood Trail 
Project, North Coast state Sen. Mike McGuire announced Friday morning. 

The long-planned project looks to transform approximately 300 miles of unused North 
Coast Rail Authority lines into a hiking trail linking urban areas to remote wilderness. 

McGuire announced $10 million of the newly procured funding will be invested into the 
Great Redwood Trail’s master plan for the portion running from Cloverdale in Sonoma 
County to Blue Lake in Humboldt County. 

As described by McGuire, the master plan will help design the trail, determine costs 
related to construction, operation and maintenance, fund analysis into the route and 
environmental impacts, and fund community engagement processes to include 
resident feedback. 

“The master plan in particular is an absolute game changer for this trail. This gives us 
the tools that we need to formally engage with our neighbors to formally engage with 
the community on this project and start moving on the build out of large sections of the 
trail,” McGuire said. “But today’s historic investment ensures that the Great Redwood 
Trail is not just a dream, it’s now a reality that will benefit our region, (and) the people 
of the North Coast for generations to come.” 

McGuire touted the project as a windfall for the region. 

 
Page 32 of 245
 
Page 32 of 245

https://www.times-standard.com/author/mario-cortez/


“The Great Redwood Trail will not only generate hundreds of jobs during construction, 
but it’s going to be a significant economic (long-term) driver for cities that surround it 
and it runs through,” McGuire said. 

Of the announced funding, $4 million dollars will be invested into improving the 
southern end of the existing freight rail service line. SMART Commuter Rail, a public 
transportation agency in the Sonoma-Marin area, has taken over this section of the 
line and currently operates passenger and freight rail transit. 

Other procured monies will be used to permanently preserve the railbed currently 
found along the project line for potential future rail use. McGuire said project 
leadership is currently working with federal authorities on the railbanking process. The 
state’s railbanking statute allows a railroad to remove all of its equipment — with the 
exception of bridges, tunnels and culverts — from a corridor and to turn the corridor 
over to any qualified private organization or public agency to maintain it for future rail 
use. 

The project had previously secured $2 million in funds to modernize and improve the 
southern portion of the rail line. 

Arcata’s city trails system and Eureka’s Waterfront Trail are set to be incorporated into 
the project. During Friday’s conference, Arcata’s Environmental Services Director 
Emily Sinkhorn highlighted the importance of trails as a public resource. 

“(The Great Redwood Trail) will really provide a safe walking and biking connection 
between northern Arcata and neighborhoods in downtown, as well as direct river 
access for Arcata residents,” she said. “Railbanking the corridor and commencing the 
great Redwood trail master planning process will enhance these opportunities across 
the region, support more cost effective trail projects that will look different, whether 
within communities or through more remote landscapes.” 

During the presentation, McGuire also unveiled the design of the master signage 
which will be marking the trail along its run. The sign markers include artwork 
depicting a native Roosevelt elk and old-growth redwoods. Cities will have the 
opportunity to include their name and municipal branding beneath the master signage 
posted along the trail portions which run through town. 

 
Page 33 of 245
 
Page 33 of 245



The Great Redwood Trail will feature markers featuring a Roosevelt Elk and old -
growth redwood trees.(Courtesy artwork — State Senator Mike McGuire’s Office) 
According to a 2020 report prepared for the Legislature and commissioned by the 
California State Transportation Agency, trail development “of the entire 252-mile 
corridor is estimated to cost nearly $750 million, or about $3.1 million per mile, in 2020 
dollars, and in excess of $1 billion, or about $4.6 million per mile, in 2030 dollars.” 

McGuire ended his presentation on an optimistic note. 

“This really is a transformational day that we have been talking about for years on 
end. To create a trail network that will connect two parts of this state, from the 
sparkling waters of Humboldt Bay to the busy bay waters in San Francisco,” he said. 
 

 
Page 34 of 245
 
Page 34 of 245



LOST COAST OUTPOST- LOCO STAFF / 7-22-21 
WEED BUST BONANZA! Marijuana Enforcement 
Team Leads Multi-Agency Effort, Serving 23 Warrants at 
Grow Ops Illegally Diverting Water 
Press release from the Humboldt County Sheriff’s Office: 

 

Growing cannabis plants from a 
bust in the Roach/Tulley Creek 

watershed.. | All photos courtesy 
HCSO. 

 

During the week of July 19-
22, 2021, deputies with the 
Humboldt County Sheriff’s 
Office Marijuana 
Enforcement Team (MET) 

served 23 search warrants to investigate illegal cannabis cultivation in 
four Humboldt County watersheds. The California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife, El Dorado County Sheriff’s Office, Tri County Drug 
Enforcement Team (TRIDENT), Humboldt County Code Enforcement, 
Humboldt County Department of Health and Human Services - 
Environmental Health, California Department of Food and Agriculture 
(CDFA) CalCannabis, California State Water Resources Control 
Board and California Division of Water Rights assisted in the service 
of the warrants. 

Numerous parcels were investigated during the service of the 
warrants in the Redwood Creek, Steelhead/Powers Creek, Salmon 
Creek and Roach/Tulley Creek watersheds. Through scientific studies, 
these watersheds were identified to be losing water flow at an 
alarming rate due to illegal commercial cannabis cultivation. The 
watersheds are home to protected species such as Coho and Chinook 
salmon, and Steelhead trout who are already faced with 

 
Page 35 of 245
 
Page 35 of 245

https://lostcoastoutpost.com/author/loco-staff


unprecedented drought conditions. Illegal cultivation activities during a 
drought year put an exuberant amount of pressure on already strained 
fish and wildlife resources. This week’s eradication effort will help to 
conserve salmon and steelhead habitat critical for species survival. 

None of the parcels investigated possessed the required county 
permit and state license to cultivate cannabis commercially. In total, 
deputies eradicated over 35,000 growing cannabis plants and 
documented approximately 97 environmental violations. During the 
service of the search warrants, environmental scientists and law 
enforcement found and documented severe damage to the 
watersheds. Additionally, juvenile salmonoids were located in 
dammed pools in the watersheds where water was being pumped out 
of with large gasoline-powered water pumps. 

The following statistics and photographs were recorded during these 
investigations. 

1. Redwood Creek Watershed 

On July 19, 2021, teams served seven warrants on parcels in the 
Redwood Creek Watershed. During the service of the warrants, 
deputies eradicated approximately 17,082 growing cannabis 
plants. Deputies seized and destroyed over 618 pounds of 
cannabis bud and over 3,580 pounds of processed cannabis. 

Assisting agencies found the following violations: 

• Twelve (12) water diversion violations (up to $8,000 fine per 
day, per violation); 

• Three (3) water pollution violations (up to $20,000 fine per day, 
per violation); 

• Four (4) depositing trash in or near a waterway violations (up 
to $20,000 fine per day, per violation). 

 
Page 36 of 245
 
Page 36 of 245



 
Dammed up creek with 100 percent 

of water being pumped out for Illegal 
cultivation. Juvenile salmonoids 

located in pool. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Garbage spread out next to Redwood Creek watershed. 

 
Page 37 of 245
 
Page 37 of 245



 
Packaged cannabis bud. 
 

 
Greenhouse with flowering cannabis. 

2. Steelhead/Powers Creek Watershed 

On July 20, 2021, teams served eight warrants on parcels in the 
Steelhead/Powers Creek Watershed. During the service of the 
warrants, deputies eradicated approximately 8,918 growing 
cannabis plants. Deputies seized and destroyed over 17 pounds 
of cannabis bud and over 1,310 pounds of processed cannabis.  

 
Page 38 of 245
 
Page 38 of 245



Assisting agencies found the following violations: 

• Twenty-three (23) water diversion violations (up to $8,000 
fine per day, per violation); 

• Nineteen (19) water pollution violations (up to $20,000 fine 
per day, per violation); 

• Sixteen (16) depositing trash in or near a waterway 
violations (up to $20,000 fine per day, per violation).  

 
Eight-foot deep hole dug into creek bed diverting 100 percent of 
waterflow to illegal cultivation. 

 
Cooking shack and garbage spread about. 

 
Page 39 of 245
 
Page 39 of 245



 
Creek dammed up and 100 percent of flow being diverted to Illegal 
cultivation. 

 
Creek dammed up and 100 percent of flow being diverted to Illegal 
cultivation 

 
Page 40 of 245
 
Page 40 of 245



 
Illegal grading and commercial cannabis cultivation. 

3. Salmon Creek Watershed 

On July 21, 2021, teams served four warrants on parcels in the 
Salmon Creek Watershed. During the service of the warrants, 
deputies eradicated approximately 2,205 growing cannabis 
plants.  

Assisting agencies found the following violations: 

• Six (6) water diversion violations (up to $8,000 fine per day, 
per violation); 

• Two (2) water pollution violations (up to $20,000 fine per 
day, per violation); 

• Four (4) depositing trash in or near a waterway violations 
(up to $20,000 fine per day, per violation). 

 
Page 41 of 245
 
Page 41 of 245



 
Dammed up Salmon Creek with bump 

in creek diverting 90 percent of 
waterflow. Juvenile salmonoids 

located in pool. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ninety percent of waterflow being diverted from waterway. 

4. Roach /Tulley Creek Watershed 

On July 22, 2021, teams served four warrants on parcels in the 
Roach /Tulley Creek Watershed. During the service of the 
warrants, deputies eradicated approximately 6,922 growing 
cannabis plants. Deputies seized and destroyed over 55 pounds 
of processed cannabis. 

 
Page 42 of 245
 
Page 42 of 245



Assisting agencies found the following violations: 

• Six (6) water diversion violations (up to $8,000 fine per day, 
per violation); 

• Two (2) water pollution violations (up to $20,000 fine per 
day, per violation). 

 
Multiple discarded fuel tanks at illegal cultivation site. 
 
 
 

 
Active water diversion with pump. 

 
Page 43 of 245
 
Page 43 of 245



 
Water pump diverting water from a creek. 
 
 
 

 
Ponded water from illegal diversion. 

 
Page 44 of 245
 
Page 44 of 245



 
Point of diversion at a dried up creek. 
 
 
 

 
Multiple water storage containers, a generator and a discarded gas 
can. 

 
Page 45 of 245
 
Page 45 of 245



 
Multiple water storage containers suspected to be filled through illegal 

water diversion. 
 
 

 
A water container, filled through illegal water diversion, and a fuel-
powered pump. 

 
Page 46 of 245
 
Page 46 of 245



 
Significant water diversion causing a creek to run dry. 
 
 

 
Growing cannabis plants. 
 
 

 
Page 47 of 245
 
Page 47 of 245



 
Cannabis plants with shipping containers in the background. 

 
Environmental scientists investigate water diversion and storage. 

 

 
Page 48 of 245
 
Page 48 of 245



No arrests were made during the service of the warrants. The cases 
will be forwarded to the DA’s Office for review. Additional violations 
with civil fines are expected to be filed by the assisting agencies. 

Anyone with information about these cases or related criminal activity 
is encouraged to call the Humboldt County Sheriff’s Office at (707) 
445-7251 or the Sheriff’s Office Crime Tip line at (707) 268-2539. 
 

 
Page 49 of 245
 
Page 49 of 245



New Study Finds California Cannabis Farms 
Irrigating with Groundwater May Affect Stream 
Flows 

 Published: Sunday, 25 July 2021 1 
 
Researchers are trying to better 
understand how expanded cannabis 
acreage is affecting water resources. 
Photo by Hekia Bodwitch 

July 25, 2021 - By Pamela Kan-Rice - The 
legalization of marijuana for recreational 
use in California has encouraged growers 
to expand plantings of the lucrative crop. 
Like any plant, cannabis requires water to 
grow. A new study from the Cannabis 
Research Center at UC Berkeley 
examined where cannabis growers in 
California are getting water for their crops, 
highlighting significant gaps in cannabis 
cultivation policy. 

Environmental advocates have expressed concern that cannabis farms are diverting water from 
rivers and streams, which could harm fish and other wildlife.  

The researchers studied water use in 11 of the state's top cannabis-producing counties – Humboldt, 
Lake, Mendocino, Monterey, Nevada, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Santa Cruz, Sonoma, 
Trinity, and Yolo. 

Using California state cannabis permitting data, the researchers found that cannabis farms rely 
primarily on groundwater wells, not streams, for their irrigation needs. But pumping groundwater 
could also have an undesirable effect on wildlife.  

“Wells drilled near streams in upland watersheds have the potential to cause rapid streamflow 
depletion similar to direct surface water diversions,” said co-author Ted Grantham, UC Cooperative 
Extension specialist and co-director of the Cannabis Research Center. 

Using well water for irrigating cannabis is common statewide, the study found. Photo by Chris Dillis 

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, or SGMA, enacted in 2014, is designed to prevent 
overdraft of groundwater and protect water quality and supplies for agriculture, residents, fish and 
other wildlife.  

But according to Grantham, “Most of the cannabis farms fall outside of the groundwater basins 
regulated under SGMA, so well use represents an important, but largely unregulated threat to 
streams in the region." 

 
Page 50 of 245
 
Page 50 of 245

https://goldrushcam.com/sierrasuntimes/index.php/news/local-news/31458-new-study-finds-california-cannabis-farms-irrigating-with-groundwater-may-affect-stream-flows
https://goldrushcam.com/sierrasuntimes/index.php/news/local-news/31458-new-study-finds-california-cannabis-farms-irrigating-with-groundwater-may-affect-stream-flows
https://goldrushcam.com/sierrasuntimes/index.php/news/local-news/31458-new-study-finds-california-cannabis-farms-irrigating-with-groundwater-may-affect-stream-flows
https://goldrushcam.com/sierrasuntimes/index.php/news/local-news/31458-new-study-finds-california-cannabis-farms-irrigating-with-groundwater-may-affect-stream-flows
https://ucanr.edu/News/?facultyid=1169


The researchers found that well use by cannabis farms is common statewide, exceeding 75% 
among farms that have permits to grow in nine of the 11 top cannabis-producing counties. In eight of 
the 11 counties, more than one-quarter of farms using wells are located outside of groundwater 
basins subject to state groundwater use regulations. Farms growing larger acreages of cannabis 
pumped more groundwater for irrigation, while farms with on-farm streams or located in areas that 
receive more rainfall were less reliant on wells. 

The study relied on water-source data only for cannabis farms that have state permits to grow. 

Based on models, the researchers estimate the majority (60%) of unregulated Northern California 
cannabis farms in Humboldt and Mendocino counties are likely to use groundwater wells if they 
follow the same patterns as the regulated industry. 

“Our results suggest that proactive steps be taken to address groundwater use in cannabis 
regulations in California and call for further research into the effects of groundwater use on 
streamflow, especially outside of large groundwater basins,” write the authors. 

The paper, “Cannabis farms in California rely on wells outside of regulated groundwater basins,” by 
Christopher Dillis, Van Butsic, Jennifer Carah, Samuel C. Zipper and Grantham is published in 
Environmental Research Communications at https://doi.org/10.1088/2515-7620/ac1124. 
Source: UC ANR 

 

 
Page 51 of 245
 
Page 51 of 245

https://doi.org/10.1088/2515-7620/ac1124


Study: Cannabis farms not as thirsty as 
previously thought 

 
A recent study from the University of California Berkeley Cannabis Research Center 
found permitted cannabis growers are using less water than previously thought. After 
years of illegal water diversions in sensitive environments – such as this image of a 
dewatered creek in Southern Humboldt County in 2013 – researchers believe the new 
data will better inform water use practices on cannabis farms. (CDFW — Contributed) 
 
By ISABELLA VANDERHEIDEN |  Times-Standard 
PUBLISHED: July 6, 2021  

A recent study from the University of California Berkley Cannabis Research Center 
found permitted cannabis farmers are consuming less water than previously thought. 

The Cannabis Research Center began researching water use on cannabis farms in 
2017, shortly after cannabis was legalized for recreational use in California. Studies 
have focused on water use reports from farmers enrolled in the state’s cannabis 
cultivation program as well as anonymous farmer surveys. 

“There is growing concern over the impacts of cannabis farms on the environment 
and water resources in particular, yet data on cultivation practices and water use 
patterns have been limited,” according to the study. “… The current study uses data 
reported by enrollees in California’s North Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board Cannabis Program to model how variation in cultivation practices and the use 
of stored water affect the timing and amount of water extracted from the environment.” 

 
Page 52 of 245
 
Page 52 of 245

https://www.times-standard.com/author/isabella-vanderheiden/
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0301479720308847


Natalynne DeLapp, executive director of the Humboldt County Growers Alliance, said 
the research coincided with what her organization has seen locally. 

“It’s a really timely (study) given how important these conversations are right now,” 
she said. “I think some people have an idea that cannabis is a particularly thirsty plant 
and it’s never been true. Now that we’re a few years into legalization and have more 
data, it’s good to see that reflected in the academic research.” 

Van Butsic and Ted Grantham, co-directors of the Cannabis Research Center and 
adjunct fellows at the Public Policy Institute of California’s Water Policy Center, are 
working to better understand how cannabis cultivation affects the state’s water post-
legalization. 

“We’re approaching 8,000 legal cannabis farms in the state, including permitted 
indoor and outdoor growing facilities. But most farms statewide are not permitted,” 
Butsic said in a PPIC publication. “To give you a sense of scale, we estimate that 
Humboldt and Mendocino counties alone had around 15,000 illegal farms in 2018. 
Permitted farms tend to be much larger than unpermitted farms, so by area it’s 
probably not as extreme as the farm numbers alone indicate.” 
Grantham noted that many legacy farms that were in operation prior to state 
legalization are still present, especially in the Emerald Triangle. 

“Most of the state’s licensed growers are also in that area,” he said. ” … We are 
concerned about cannabis water use because many cannabis farms are in remote 
upper watersheds that support sensitive species. There’s naturally low water 
availability in these headwaters, especially in the dry season, so even small diversions 
can have an impact on the ecosystem.” 

That being said, Butsic and Grantham said their research “hasn’t found cannabis to 
be particularly thirsty relative to other crops.” 

“Legal outdoor production uses about the same amount of water as a crop like 
tomatoes,” Bustic said. 

“Cannabis farms are considerably smaller than other crops — on average, about a 
quarter acre. So, cannabis has a very small footprint and accounts for just a fraction of 
the water used by California agriculture overall,” Grantham said. “We see more 
variability in cannabis water use than other crops, partly because cannabis has 
avoided the standardization of production methods that we find in large-scale 
agriculture.” 

The average size of a cannabis farm in Humboldt County is half an acre whereas 
most other agricultural products are grown on hundreds or thousands of acres, 
DeLapp said. 

 
Page 53 of 245
 
Page 53 of 245

http://ppic.org/blog/how-does-cannabis-cultivation-affect-californias-water/?utm_source=rss&utm_medium=rss&utm_campaign=how-does-cannabis-cultivation-affect-californias-water?utm_source=ppic&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=blog_subscriber


“Add it all up and we’ve estimated that a single large almond farm in the Central 
Valley utilizes 33 times more water than all permitted Humboldt cannabis farms 
combined,” she said. “Another way to look at thirstiness is to consider how much 
output is produced by a single gallon of water. For other crops like tomatoes, lettuce 
or almonds, a gallon of water produces between a tenth of a cent to two cents of 
value in yield. For cannabis, a gallon of water produces nearly $7 worth of value. In 
that sense, cannabis is by far the most water-efficient agricultural product in 
California.” 

The study notes that cannabis farmers depend on a variety of water sources for 
irrigation, including rivers and streams, springs, wells, municipal water and captured 
rainwater. Most permitted cannabis farms rely on groundwater wells to meet their 
water demands, including more than half of the permitted farms in Humboldt and 
Mendocino counties that use wells. 

(Public Policy Institute of California — 
Contributed) 
Tom Wheeler, executive director of the 
Environmental Protection Information 
Center, said he was concerned by the 
relationship between wells and surface 
water. 

“Groundwater in California is very poorly 
regulated,” he said. ” … With all of these 
new wells that have been put in for 
cannabis farms because they are so 

limited in their ability to pull from surface water, all the wells are starting to dry up the 
springs and groundwater tables that would otherwise be connected to the surface 
flows. So, we still could be having some sort of an impact on surface water flows 
which is concerning.” 

That being said, Wheeler added that “the cannabis model is a good one.” 

“It’s not to say that there aren’t potential issues with cannabis production and water 
use,” he said. “I think that the industry, generally, has done a better job of figuring out 
how to use a more limited and precious resource than other forms of agriculture. 
Hopefully, cannabis is kind of the first step towards better regulations for other forms 
of agriculture.” 

DeLapp noted that ongoing drought conditions have also pushed cannabis farmers to 
reconsider their water use. 

“Many farmers are feeling anxious about the drought and are concerned about the 
long-term impacts of climate change on our community and the environment,” she 
said. “There’s also an understanding that we’re likely to see more of this in the future 

 
Page 54 of 245
 
Page 54 of 245



and so there’s a lot of interest in long-term climate resiliency planning which includes 
increased water storage capacity and improved water efficiency measures.” 

Because the data focused exclusively on permitted cannabis farms, researchers hope 
to expand their study to unpermitted operations to “enhance (the) overall 
understanding of cannabis water-use practices and consequences for the 
environment.” 

“One benefit of legalization is the research we’re now able to do,” Bustic said. “Most of 
the things we talked about today we didn’t know at all five years ago. In five more 
years, we’ll learn a lot more.” 

More information on the study can be found at crc.berkeley.edu. 
 

 
Page 55 of 245
 
Page 55 of 245

http://crc.berkeley.edu/


 
Page 56 of 245
 
Page 56 of 245



 
Page 57 of 245
 
Page 57 of 245



 
Page 58 of 245
 
Page 58 of 245



LOST COAST OUTPOST 
JACKIE BOTTS, CALMATTERS / 7/20/21  

Unpaid Utility Bills? California Will Pay Off $2 Billion Worth 
to Avoid Shutoffs 

 

Will Hollman with his son outside of his 
home in the San Fernando Valley. “I love 
my kids and it is my duty to be a parent,” 

Hollman said. “I’m fighting a lot of battles.” 
Pablo Unzueta for CalMatters 

Two years ago the Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power shut off 

electricity at Will Hollman’s home in the San Fernando Valley, forcing the family to 
rely on a gasoline generator. In late June of this year, the department disconnected 
the water, too — despite a statewide moratorium on water shutoffs that Gov. Gavin 
Newsom recently extended through Sept. 30. 

Hollman, his 10-year-old son and his 16-year-old stepdaughter endured 11 days of 
temperatures in the high 90s to low 100s without water or power. For 11 days, they 
camped out in air-conditioned grocery stores, Starbucks or his truck. They 
couchsurfed and used friends’ showers. Hollman played it off with the kids as some 
kind of fun obstacle course. 

He called the department’s customer service, and said a representative told him that 
he must pay off his utility debt of $9,064.13 — largely consisting of charges that 
Hollman disputes as erroneous — before water or power could be restored. 

“It’s been demoralizing, humiliating,” Hollman said on the eighth day. “I have a 
history of paying my bills, working, being a good provider. You… start having 
feelings of failure as a parent.” 

Ultimately the state’s water agency convinced the LA department to turn on 
Hollman’s water. 

Those 11 days without water or power are a window into what could happen to 
millions of Californians in the coming months and years, depending on how swiftly 
and effectively the state distributes relief. 

Official estimates of unpaid water and energy bills accumulated during the pandemic 
verge on $2.7 billion, affecting a few million Californians — and those figures have 
been growing rapidly. 

 
Page 59 of 245
 
Page 59 of 245

https://lostcoastoutpost.com/author/jackie-botts
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/4.2.20-EO-N-42-20.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/6.11.21-EO-N-08-21-signed.pdf
https://youtu.be/SozYyHYaDUI?t=2096
https://youtu.be/SozYyHYaDUI?t=2096


The state has so far prioritized rent relief — keeping people housed — over utilities 
relief. A spokesperson for the state’s COVID-19 Rent Relief program said that of the 
$158 million distributed as of July 16, less than $40,000 had gone to utilities relief. 
Utility debt makes up about 6% of all assistance requested so far. 

On July 11, lawmakers revealed a plan to use one-time federal relief money to 
address the debt. The deal is a patchwork of new programs to forgive $2 billion of 
utilities debt and old programs to help households chip away at the rest, with a wide 
range of eligibility criteria and timelines. But it doesn’t extend current shutoff 
moratoria past Sept. 30. 

“We’re laser-focused on getting this assistance out the door as quickly as possible,” 
Newsom said in a statement about ongoing rent relief and the utilities relief plan. He 
has signed the energy bills relief into law, while the water bills relief still awaits his 
signature. 

This will be an important “reboot” to protect Californians and utility companies, said 
Ellen Hanak, director of the Water Policy Center at the Public Policy Institute of 
California. 

“You don’t want people to be shut off from basic services,” Hanak said, “But it’s also 
a hit to the entire community if utilities aren’t able to balance their books, because 
that can have all sorts of ripple effects on the abilities of water and electrical systems 
to run well.” 

When it comes to forgiving California’s utility debt, key questions remain: 

• Will $2 billion be nearly enough? 
• Can the money be distributed quickly enough to prevent shutoffs? 

“For public health and safety, it’s important for people to have roofs over their heads, 
clean water and power. Those are all pieces of the puzzle,” Hanak said. 

A Catch-22 at LA’s utilities department? 
Hollman’s utilities troubles began well before the pandemic. 

After opening an account in 2017, he began receiving unusually high electricity 
charges topping $1,000 — even during months when no one was living in the house 
because he was staying with his parents — which Hollman attributes to billing errors 
by the LA utility. 

Under financial stress following a messy separation, Hollman said he let the bills pile 
up. 

 
Page 60 of 245
 
Page 60 of 245

https://www.gov.ca.gov/2021/07/16/governor-newsom-signs-state-budget-legislation-7-16-21/


By early 2019, his unpaid balance had mounted to nearly $9,000. He applied for 
$2,000 of assistance from the Los Angeles County Department of Public Social 
Services to keep service on. But the water agency insisted on full payment of his bill, 
according to correspondence from his social worker reviewed by CalMatters. In 
March of 2019, the department shut off his power due to non-payment. He bought a 
generator. 

Following the power shutoff, the electricity charges continued, labeled as 
“unmetered estimated consumption” in bills reviewed by CalMatters, meaning the 
utility generated them without checking Hollman’s meter. In December 2019, a 
customer service representative credited his account with several thousand dollars, 
but, according to Hollman, told him that the department couldn’t stop the continuing 
energy charges or issue more credits until a technician read his meter. 

Which required that the power be turned back on. 

Which couldn’t happen until he paid off the debt. 

As Hollman tells it, he was caught in a Catch-22. 

In April 2020, amid the first pandemic surge, the LA utilities department closed 
Hollman’s account with an unpaid balance of $9,064.13, meaning that he couldn’t 
open a new account until he paid off the debt, which could affect his credit score or 
be taken to small claims court. But, Hollman said, a representative promised that 
water would stay on while the pandemic lasted. For over a year, it did — until a 
technician arrived unannounced in late June. 

The LA utilities department tells a somewhat different story. In a statement, a 
department spokesperson said that it had disconnected Hollman’s water in October 
2017 and power in March 2019 because Hollman had made no payments since 
opening his account in March 2017. The spokesperson said the department turned 
off his water twice more after detecting unauthorized use, in April 2019 and again 
this past June, when it “came to light to LADWP… that water service had illegally 
been turned back on.” 

While declining to comment on the high “unmetered estimated consumption” 
charges or Hollman’s apparent Catch-22, the spokesperson said the department 
restored water service in early July “in an attempt to work out a payment plan… for 
the water and power that was consumed since 2017.” 

Hollman disputes that he illegally reconnected the water, saying it never stopped 
flowing and that he never received notices it would be shut off. He said that a water 
department representative told him last week that he had to pay a third of his 
outstanding bill — money that he said he doesn’t have — before he can qualify for a 
payment plan. 

 
Page 61 of 245
 
Page 61 of 245



Mounting debt, and shutoffs despite protections 
Hollman is not alone. Despite shutoff protections, the California State Water 
Resources Control Board has received 308 reports of water disconnections during 
the pandemic. No agency tracks power shutoffs. 

A spokesperson said the state water board got water restored in each case, 
including for Hollman. 

In February, the state water board estimated that 1.6 million households were late 
on water bills that totalled over $1 billion across California, and were growing 
quickly. The California Municipal Utilities Association estimated unpaid energy bills 
at publicly owned utilities topped $300 million, while close to 4 million customers of 
investor-owned utilities were behind on energy bills, totaling $1.4 billion, as of late 
June, according to a California Public Utilities Commission spokesperson. 

Many people don’t know that they are still protected from shutoffs. Some no longer 
are. 

When the state reopened in mid-June, Newsom quietly extended the moratorium on 
water shutoffs to Sept. 30. One water system has already said that it will resume 
shutoffs the next day. 

The California Public Utilities Commission also extended the power shutoff 
moratorium to Sept. 30, days before it was set to expire on June 30. But that only 
applies to customers of investor-owned utilities, leaving the quarter of Californians 
served by publicly owned utilities vulnerable, said Mad Stano, an energy equity 
attorney at the Greenlining Institute, a racial justice nonprofit. 

LA’s water department is the largest publicly owned utility in the United States. 
During the pandemic, customers’ unpaid bills there increased more than 10-fold, 
from $37 million accrued during 2019 to $400 million accrued during the first eight 
months of the pandemic, according to a state Water Board report. More than one in 
five customers behind on bills had debt over $1,000. The department has voluntarily 
chosen to extend its own moratorium on shutoffs for nonpayment, according to a 
spokesperson, but has not yet announced an end date. It has also not publicized 
that decision. 

Deborah Bell-Holt didn’t know. 

Her utilities bill ballooned to $19,308.45 during the pandemic as her South Los 
Angeles household grew to include 12 children, grandchildren and friends. 

Bell-Holt assumed that disconnections would start June 30, when evictions were set 
to begin had lawmakers not made a last-minute deal. She scrambled to send the 
department $500 in late May and $200 on June 25th, hoping a few payments would 

 
Page 62 of 245
 
Page 62 of 245

https://watershut-off.covid19.ca.gov/#:%7E:text=State%20of%20California%20COVID%2D19%20Water%20Shutoff%20Report&text=If%20you%20require%20translation%20assistance,submitting%20a%20water%20shutoff%20report.
https://watershut-off.covid19.ca.gov/#:%7E:text=State%20of%20California%20COVID%2D19%20Water%20Shutoff%20Report&text=If%20you%20require%20translation%20assistance,submitting%20a%20water%20shutoff%20report.
https://calmatters.org/california-divide/2021/01/water-debt-california-households-face-water-shutoffs/
https://calmatters.org/california-divide/2021/01/water-debt-california-households-face-water-shutoffs/
https://higherlogicdownload.s3.amazonaws.com/CSDA/b24702e8-8a42-4614-8c45-bc3cba37ea2c/UploadedImages/Advocate/Take_Action/covid19_utility_debt_assistance_coalition_letter.pdf
https://higherlogicdownload.s3.amazonaws.com/CSDA/b24702e8-8a42-4614-8c45-bc3cba37ea2c/UploadedImages/Advocate/Take_Action/covid19_utility_debt_assistance_coalition_letter.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/6.11.21-EO-N-08-21-signed.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/6.11.21-EO-N-08-21-signed.pdf
https://www.padredam.org/CivicAlerts.aspx?AID=231
https://www.padredam.org/CivicAlerts.aspx?AID=231
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M389/K401/389401945.PDF
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M389/K401/389401945.PDF
https://www.kqed.org/news/11747148/map-public-power-providers-in-california
https://clkrep.lacity.org/onlinedocs/2021/21-0540_misc_05-19-21.pdf
https://clkrep.lacity.org/onlinedocs/2021/21-0540_misc_05-19-21.pdf
https://calmatters.org/california-divide/2021/01/water-debt-california-households-face-water-shutoffs/
https://calmatters.org/housing/2021/06/california-eviction-moratorium-deal/


stave off shutoffs. To afford that, she said she took out a $500 loan with 347% 
interest, which she’s still paying back. 

Bell-Holt said that if she’d known she wasn’t at risk on June 30, “I wouldn’t put us in 
a hole like that.” 

The state and utilities haven’t done enough to inform Californians about protections, 
Stano contends. “The state needs to require… communications to people so they 
don’t make financial decisions that they don’t have to make,” they said. 

Living without water or power 
On Hollman’s third day this summer without water or power, it hit 100 degrees 
outside. Inside the house was even hotter. 

Hollman and his kids are used to life without air conditioning in one of California’s 
hottest regions. Their generator — which requires $10 of fuel per day, on average — 
only powers the lights, electronics and refrigerator. Normally, Hollman might cool the 
house by hosing down the roof and outdoor plants. 

Instead, the family lingered at McDonald’s. “It becomes very difficult to keep your 
spirit up, but you have to for your kids,” Hollman said. “You can’t crack.” 

 
Will Hollman’s day typically begins by filling this 
container with gas for the generator he’s relied 

on since electricity was shut off to his San 
Fernando Valley home. Photo by Pablo Unzueta 

for CalMatters 

On the fifth day, his son thanked Hollman for the 
best day ever, after the two spent the afternoon 

cutting through the heat on skateboards. 

On the ninth morning, Hollman ran out of generator fuel. He reminded his kids not to 
open the refrigerator, so the food wouldn’t spoil. He knew his car’s radiator was low, 
but he was out of coolant and bottled water. He crossed his fingers that the old truck 
wouldn’t overheat on the way to the gas station. It did. 

“It’s a dance that people shouldn’t have to f — ing do,” Hollman said. 

Relief on the way for California utility bills 
Theoretically, lawmakers’ new deal could prevent more people from that dance. 

 
Page 63 of 245
 
Page 63 of 245



In May, Newsom proposed $2 billion to relieve utilities debt. Legislators agreed to 
the price tag in June, but continued negotiating the distribution plan in private. 

The result is two budget bills that would create new programs that pay utilities 
directly to forgive customer debt accrued during the pandemic, prioritizing those at 
greatest risk of shutoffs. The California Arrearage Payment Program would forgive 
$994 million in energy debt, while the California Water and Wastewater Arrearage 
Payment Program would forgive $985 million. 

In both cases, utilities must opt in. They must also offer all customers with pandemic 
debt a payment plan that would protect them from shutoffs as long as they enroll 
and stay current on the plan. Plus, the first forbids energy utilities from disconnecting 
power to a customer for 90 days after applying forgiveness to their account. Neither 
bill extends the shutoff moratoria, though the Public Utilities Commission has 
extended a moratorium on shutoffs for a segment of water utilities, which cover 
about 16% of customers. 

The pending legislation also funnels an unspecified amount of federal relief money 
into two existing programs for which households must be income-eligible and apply 
for the assistance. 

It’s unclear whether Hollman will be eligible for the programs, given that he accrued 
his debt before the COVID-19 pandemic. He may be at risk of another water shutoff 
soon. 

A repeat of rent relief troubles? 
The state has created countless new assistance programs during the pandemic — 
many mired by delays, bureaucracy and scandals. 

The state’s COVID rent relief program is one example. As CalMatters reported, 
lengthy online applications available in too few languages initially blocked access to 
vulnerable renters, while distribution has been painfully slow. 

The California utility bill debt forgiveness programs proposed last week sidestep 
some of these problems by requiring utilities, instead of customers, to apply, and by 
not requiring customers to prove eligibility. Advocates cheered that choice, but 
worried lawmakers didn’t go far enough to prevent shutoffs. 

The water program legislation requires the water board to start distributing funds by 
Nov. 1. But that’s a month after the shutoff moratorium ends, said Jennifer Clary, 
California state director of nonprofit Clean Water Action. “I’m a little concerned about 
that gap,” she said. 

Stano of the Greenlining Institute said that the bill language doesn’t prevent publicly 
owned utilities from shutting off power right now. They said it also doesn’t provide 

 
Page 64 of 245
 
Page 64 of 245

http://www.ebudget.ca.gov/FullBudgetSummary.pdf
https://calmatters.org/newsletters/whatmatters/2021/07/california-budget-legislature/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB135
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB148
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB148
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB129
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M393/K048/393048062.PDF
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M393/K048/393048062.PDF
https://www.csd.ca.gov/Pages/LIHEAPProgram.aspx
https://www.acf.hhs.gov/ocs/programs/lihwap
https://calmatters.org/california-divide/2020/12/why-few-farmworkers-isolate-in-californias-free-covid-19-hotel-rooms/
https://calmatters.org/california-divide/2020/05/undocumented-immigrants-state-disaster-aid-unreachable/
https://calmatters.org/economy/2021/01/bank-of-america-lost-hundreds-of-millions-on-california-unemployment-fiasco/
https://housing.ca.gov/covid_rr/
https://calmatters.org/housing/2021/04/california-rent-relief-tenants/


enough guidance to ensure that payment plans are sufficiently accessible and 
reasonable to keep people safe from shutoffs — especially given that only about 
two-thirds of the debt is expected to be forgiven. 

“We will not be celebrating anything until the risk of disconnection is removed,” said 
Stano, who is pushing for the energy shutoff moratorium to be extended past Sept. 
30. 

A life-long Democrat, Hollman finds his faith in government assistance tested. He 
says he’s never relied much on it until his work as a telecommunications salesman 
for brick-and-mortar businesses came to a sudden halt last March. He applied for 
unemployment benefits so that he could focus on overseeing his children’s virtual 
schooling without any electricity coming to the house, but the checks don’t cover 
rent, food and generator fuel. He borrowed money, sold assets and made partial 
rent payments. 

Like millions of Californians, Hollman has run into unemployment benefits snafus. 

The last one happened several nights after the water department turned the water 
back on. Hollman received his unemployment payment to his Bank of America 
unemployment benefits account, but said when he tried paying bills the next 
morning, the money had already been withdrawn. He said he filed reports of identity 
theft with police and the Employment Development Department. 

Hollman also said he called his landlord to tell him he wouldn’t be able to make 
July’s rent — and that he hasn’t heard back about the $5,000 in rent relief he’s 
applied for from the city of Los Angeles. He said he planned to find work this 
summer, but has been in crisis mode since the water shutoff. 

“It can’t be understated,” Hollman texted, “how delicate the balance of survival is.” 

### 

CALmatters.org is a nonprofit, nonpartisan media venture explaining California 
policies and politics. 

 

 
Page 65 of 245
 
Page 65 of 245

https://calmatters.org/explainers/california-edd-unemployment-crisis-explained/
http://calmatters.org/


 

July 14, 2021  |  Written by Aaron A. Ferguson, Ellen M. Simmons (for Somach, 
Simmons and Dunn, attorneys at law) 

Lawsuit Will Test Application of Requirement That a 
County Consider Public Trust Resources in 
Permitting Groundwater Extraction 

Last month, California Coastkeeper Alliance (Coastkeeper) filed suit seeking to enjoin Sonoma County 
from issuing groundwater well permits until it adopts a program to consider and protect public trust 
resources in the Russian River watershed.  This case is the first of its kind to attempt to enforce the 
holding of Environmental Law Foundation v. State Water Resources Control Board (2018) 26 Cal.App.5th 
848, in which the Third District Court of Appeal held that the County of Siskiyou, when issuing 
groundwater well permits, is obligated to apply the public trust doctrine by considering whether 
groundwater pumping could adversely impact the Scott River, a navigable water. 

Considering the limited flows in navigable waters and use of 
groundwater wells to supplement reduced supplies, the 
extent to which counties must further condition 
groundwater extraction will become an increasingly 
important issue. 

Environmental Law Foundation v. State Water Resources Control 
Board (2018) 

The public trust doctrine is based on the principle that the public has a right to the use of navigable 
waters without obstruction or interference by private parties.  While groundwater does not qualify as 
navigable, the court in Environmental Law Foundation found that groundwater extraction may injure 
public trust resources when it adversely impacts a navigable water.  The court subsequently concluded 
that the public trust doctrine could coexist with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), 
given that SGMA was not sufficiently comprehensive to preempt the common law.  In 
effect, Environmental Law Foundation upheld the County of Siskiyou’s obligation to apply the public 
trust doctrine when issuing groundwater well permits when the groundwater extraction threatens to 

 
Page 66 of 245
 
Page 66 of 245

https://somachlaw.com/person/aaron-a-ferguson/
https://somachlaw.com/person/ellen-m-simmons/


impact public trust uses of the Scott River, a navigable water.  This holding from Environmental Law 
Foundation has not been tested in subsequent proceedings. 

California Coastkeeper Alliance v. County of Sonoma 

Coastkeeper’s legal claims rely on the application of Environmental Law Foundation’s holding that a 
county must consider the impacts of new wells when issuing well permits.  The petition sets forth two 
causes of action:  (1) Sonoma County failed to comply with its duty to consider adverse effects to public 
trust resources and uses when issuing water well permits, and (2) Sonoma County failed to comply with 
the public trust duty to prevent harm to public trust resources and uses where feasible. 

Coastkeeper alleges that Sonoma County’s groundwater well permit issuance requirements do not 
reference or consider public trust resources or uses.  Further, it claims that there is no indication in the 
County’s files, application materials, or policies that the public trust was considered when issuing 404 
groundwater well permits between the decision in Environmental Law Foundation in August 2018 and 
August 2020.  In particular, Coastkeeper’s petition posits that agricultural and rural residential 
groundwater wells significantly reduce flows in the Russian River and threaten federally-listed 
endangered species, including the Coho salmon, California tiger salamanders, and California freshwater 
shrimp. 

The Coastkeeper proceedings will provide valuable insight into the application of the key holdings 
in Environmental Law Foundation in challenges against counties that have not explicitly included 
consideration of the public trust doctrine in permitting groundwater wells.  This will be particularly 
important given the current drought conditions in the State of California.  Considering the limited flows 
in navigable waters and use of groundwater wells to supplement reduced supplies, the extent to which 
counties must further condition groundwater extraction will become an increasingly important issue. 

For more information, please contact Ellen M. Simmons at esimmons@somachlaw.com or Aaron A. 
Ferguson at aferguson@somachlaw.com. 

Somach Simmons & Dunn provides the information in its Environmental Law & Policy Alerts and on its 
website for informational purposes only.  This general information is not a substitute for legal advice, and 
users should consult with legal counsel for specific advice.  In addition, using this information or sending 
electronic mail to Somach Simmons & Dunn or its attorneys does not create an attorney-client relationship 
with Somach Simmons & Dunn. 

 

 
Page 67 of 245
 
Page 67 of 245

mailto:esimmons@somachlaw.com
mailto:aferguson@somachlaw.com


A Rose Inspired This Design For the Smartest Way to Collect And Purify Water 
By Good News Network - June 25, 2021 Source: University of Texas at Austin  (author uncredited)   

 

The rose may be one of the most 

iconic symbols of the fragility of 
love in popular culture, but now the 

flower could hold more than just 
symbolic value. 

A new device for collecting and 

purifying water, developed at The 
University of Texas at Austin, was 

inspired by a rose and, while more 
engineered than enchanted, is a 

dramatic improvement on current 
methods. 

Each flower-like structure costs less 

than two cents to make and can 
produce more than half a gallon of 
water per hour per square meter. 

A team led by associate professor Donglei Fan developed a new approach to 
solar steaming for water production—a technique that uses energy from 
sunlight to separate salt and other impurities from water through evaporation. 

The authors of the study outline how an origami rose provided the inspiration 
for developing a new kind of solar-steaming system made from layered, black 

paper sheets shaped into petals. Attached to a stem-like tube that collects 
untreated water from any water source, the 3D rose shape makes it easier for 
the structure to collect and retain more liquid. 

July bounty shared with HBMWD Eureka office by 
Director Lindberg 

 
Page 68 of 245
 
Page 68 of 245

https://www.goodnewsnetwork.org/author/geri/
https://news.utexas.edu/2019/05/29/a-rose-inspires-smart-way-to-collect-and-purify-water/


Current solar-steaming technologies are usually expensive, bulky and produce 
limited results. The team’s method uses inexpensive materials that are portable 

and lightweight. Oh, and it also looks just like a black-petaled rose in a glass 
jar. 

Cockrell School of 

Engineering, The 
University of Texas at 

Austin 
 

Those in the know 
would more accurately 

describe it as a 
portable low-pressure 

controlled solar-
steaming-collection 

“unisystem.” But its resemblance to a flower is no coincidence. 

“We were searching for more efficient ways to apply the solar-steaming 
technique for water production by using black filtered paper coated with a 
special type of polymer, known as polypyrrole,” Fan said.  

Polypyrrole is a material known for its photothermal properties, meaning it’s 
particularly good at converting solar light into thermal heat. 

Fan and her team experimented with a number of different ways to shape the 

paper to see what was best for achieving optimal water retention levels. They 
began by placing single, round layers of the coated paper flat on the ground 

under direct sunlight. The single sheets showed promise as water collectors but 
not in sufficient amounts. 

After toying with a few other shapes, Fan was inspired by a book she read in 

high school. Although not about roses per se, The Black Tulip by Alexandre 

 
Page 69 of 245
 
Page 69 of 245



Dumas gave her the idea to try using a flower-like shape, and she discovered 
the rose to be ideal. 

Its structure allowed more direct sunlight to hit the photothermic material—with 

more internal reflections—than other floral shapes and also provided enlarged 
surface area for water vapor to dissipate from the material. 

The device collects water through its stem-like tube—feeding it to the flower-
shaped structure on top. It can also collect rain drops coming from above. 

Water finds its way to the petals where the polypyrrole material coating the 
flower turns the water into steam. Impurities naturally separate from water 
when condensed in this way. 

“We designed the purification-collection unisystem to include a connection point 
for a low-pressure pump to help condense the water more effectively,” said 

Weigu Li, a Ph.D. candidate in Fan’s lab and lead author on the paper. “Once it 
is condensed, the glass jar is designed to be compact, sturdy and secure for  

The device removes any contamination from heavy metals and bacteria, and it 

removes salt from seawater, producing clean water that meets drinking 
standard requirements set by the World Health Organization. 

“Our rational design and low-cost fabrication of 3D origami photothermal 

materials represents a first-of-its-kind portable low-pressure solar-steaming-
collection system,” Li said. 

“This could inspire new paradigms of solar-steaming technologies in clean water 
production for individuals and homes.” 

BLOOM the Good News in Friends’ Feeds by Sharing This Story… 

 

 
Page 70 of 245
 
Page 70 of 245

https://dx.doi.org/10.1002/adma.201900720


Sustainable Sand Gives Pollution a One-Two Punch by 

Soaking Up Toxic Metals and Purifying Water Supplies 
By Good News Network-Jan 7, 2020 (author uncredited)  Reprinted from UC Berkeley Engineering 
 

 
A team of engineers has developed a mineral-coated sand that can soak up 
toxic metals like lead and cadmium from water. 

Along with its ability to destroy organic pollutants like bisphenol A, this material 

could help cities tap into stormwater—an abundant, but underused water 
source. 

The team’s findings were recently published in the journal Environmental 
Science: Water Research & Technology. 

The researchers from UC Berkeley knew that the naturally occurring minerals 
they coated onto sand could react with organic contaminants like pesticides in 

stormwater. However, the ability of the coated sand to also remove harmful 
metals during filtration could unlock urban water supplies that had been written 
off. 

Cities with Mediterranean climates, like Los Angeles, could store stormwater 
underground during wet winters, where it could serve as an inexpensive, local 

supply during the dry season. But this resource has gone mostly untapped 

 
Page 71 of 245
 
Page 71 of 245

https://www.goodnewsnetwork.org/author/geri/
https://engineering.berkeley.edu/2019/12/sustainable-sand-gives-pollution-one-two-punch
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlelanding/2020/ew/c9ew00781d#!divAbstract
https://pubs.rsc.org/en/content/articlelanding/2020/ew/c9ew00781d#!divAbstract


because stormwater picks up toxic chemicals as it runs through streets and 
gutters. 

“The pollutants that hold back the potential of this water source rarely come 

one at a time,” said study lead author Joe Charbonnet, who conducted this 
research as a graduate student in civil and environmental engineering. “It 

makes sense that we fight back with a treatment technology that has these 
impressive double abilities to take out both toxic metals and organics. We 

suspected that the mineral-coated sand was special, but the way it continues to 
impress us with multiple capabilities is rather extraordinary.” 

Cities often discard stormwater as pollution because it picks up contamination 

like lead particles left behind from decades of leaded gasoline emissions or 
pesticides from lawns. Exposure to these chemicals is associated with slow 
neurological development in children and some types of cancer. 

However, researchers say that their coated sand material could be installed in 
rain gardens in places like parking lots where stormwater can be collected and 

cleaned. They estimate that this material could remove metals from stormwater 
for over a decade in a typical infiltration system, which would convey runoff into 
underground aquifers. 

The researchers see this material turning pollution into a solution for strained 
water supplies, particularly in parched cities that pay to import water. 

“Rainwater used to percolate into the soil and recharge aquifers,” said David 

Sedlak, professor of civil and environmental engineering and co-author of the 
paper. “That changed when we covered city landscapes with hard surfaces like 

roads and buildings. As water-stressed cities try to figure out how to get urban 
stormwater back into the ground, we have serious concerns about the quality of 

that water. Our coated sands can remove not one, but two major classes of 
contaminants that threaten groundwater quality during stormwater infiltration.” 

 
Page 72 of 245
 
Page 72 of 245



To make the filtration media, the scientists coated sand particles with 
manganese oxide, a naturally-occurring nontoxic mineral commonly found in 
soil. 

Work has already begun to investigate how well this material performs at large 
scales. Researchers have deployed large test columns of the mineral-coated 
sands to treat stormwater at sites in Los Angeles and Sonoma, California. 

Clean Up Negativity By Sharing The Good News With Your Friends 

 

 
Page 73 of 245
 
Page 73 of 245



New Web Project Traces Every Waterway in Contiguous U.S. 
Using data from the United States Geological Survey, data analyst Sam Learner mapped the flow 
of water throughout the entire contiguous U.S. Click on any spot to create a raindrop and follow 

it downstream. 

Source: americanrivers.org   July 19, 2021 
By: Katrina Cubanski 

 

 
Colorado River, AZ | Photo by Tim Palmer 
 

Calling all river-lovers and map enthusiasts! A new web project 
called River Runner, created by data analyst Sam Learner, allows 
you to follow the path of a raindrop anywhere in the contiguous 
United States. Using data from the United States Geological Survey, 
Learner mapped the flow of water throughout all 48 adjoining 
states. Just click on any spot on the map to create your raindrop 
and watch it flow downstream. 

LINK: https://river-runner.samlearner.com/ 

We are excited about this tool because it provides you with a bird’s 
eye view of the river and its surroundings. Landmarks such as lakes 
and major mountains are marked, and the degree of detail and 
vertical distance from the river is flexible, which means you control 
the detail. Depending on where you begin your journey, you can start 
on an unnamed stream or a small river, or you might jump right on 
to the path of a major river. 

 
Page 74 of 245
 
Page 74 of 245

https://www.americanrivers.org/author/kcubanski/
https://river-runner.samlearner.com/
https://www.fastcompany.com/90641430/this-map-lets-you-fly-along-the-path-of-a-drop-of-water-from-any-place-in-the-u-s


Here are some trips we suggest trying out: 

Follow the Colorado River 

One Possible Path Following the Colorado 

As you trace the path of the 
Colorado, you’ll notice many of the 
country’s famous natural wonders. 
The River Runner website shows the 
river’s nearby topography, and you’ll 
see it flow alongside mountains, 

mesas, and canyon walls. Look down on the river flowing through 
the Grand Canyon or farther north, and you’ll see it flow through 
other National Parks, including Rocky Mountain and Canyonlands. 

As you watch its course, keep in mind that even a grand river has its 
limits. Demand for the Colorado River’s water is exceeding its 
supply. Seven different states rely on water from the Colorado, but 
its usage is unsustainable. While watching it flow virtually, consider 
how essential it is that we take measures to ensure it does not dry 
up. 

Follow the Snake River 

Lower Snake River, ID | Photo by Alison M. Jones 

Using River Runner you’ll encounter the Snake 
River, a tributary of the Columbia River, 
predominantly in Idaho, but also in Wyoming, 
Oregon, and Washington. 

Along the Snake River, you’ll notice several 
dams. These include the Little Goose and Ice Harbor Dams. While 
the river continues to flow through them, unfortunately migratory 
fish face each of the dams as a barrier, preventing them from 
moving freely to their natural spawning grounds. A high proportion 
of juvenile salmon are killed in their attempts to swim downstream. 
As you follow the Snake River’s path, consider the benefits of 
making this a truly free-flowing river. 

 
Page 75 of 245
 
Page 75 of 245



Follow the Mississippi River 

Upper Mississippi River, IA 

You can start your path on the lengthy 
Mississippi from an incredible number of 
places, as it flows through ten states and 
drains 41 percent of the continental U.S. In 
fact, if you’re in the mood to explore, you’ll 
notice that to follow the Mississippi’s route 
downstream, you don’t need to start all that 

close to the river itself. Waterways as far away as Montana and 
Pennsylvania will ultimately drain into the Gulf of Mexico via the 
Mississippi. 

While watching the Mississippi’s path, think about the changes the 
river has undergone over its history. Throughout the 1900s, 
wetlands and other floodplain ecosystems were drained and cut off 
from the river. This immensely degraded the habitat of native 
species and made flooding far more dangerous. Restoring the 
river’s natural floodplains is crucial moving forward. 

These are just a few examples of the literally thousands of possible 
water sources you can start with. What the website makes 
abundantly clear is the extent to which our waterways are linked, 
demonstrating that the problems facing one body of water will 
seldom remain exclusive to it. This impact was intentional. 

 Learner explained, “What I really hope people take away from the 
tool, besides a fun visual experience, is just how interconnected our 
waterways are, and the implications of that in terms of pollutants, 
agriculture, or water use.” 

We encourage you to try out the tool, and whether you want to see 
where the water in your own backyard goes, want to trace the banks 
of mighty rivers, or even seek to develop conservation strategies, we 
know you will learn something about how water runs through the 
country. 

 
Page 76 of 245
 
Page 76 of 245

https://www.fastcompany.com/90641430/this-map-lets-you-fly-along-the-path-of-a-drop-of-water-from-any-place-in-the-u-s


Valley Water embarks on Anderson Dam project after 
years of unexpected delays 
The Milpitas Beat: By Grace Hase 

July 13, 2021 

Anderson Dam; photo 
courtesy of Valley Water. 

It started with a warning from 
state officials more than a decade 
ago that a major earthquake 
could cause the crest of 
Anderson Dam to slump, 
allowing water to cascade over 
the top and leave Morgan Hill 
underwater in mere minutes. 

Last week, the Santa Clara 
Valley Water District finally 
broke ground on the first phase 

of what has become a 10-year, $648 million project to retrofit the dam.  

The district first started its planning process in 2012. Chris Hakes, who serves as the deputy 
operating officer of the Valley Water’s dam safety and capital delivery division, told The Beat 
that at the time it was supposed to be a “relatively straightforward seismic retrofit project.” But 
over the years, a series of unexpected setbacks increased both the project’s scope and cost. 

The original plan –– to add buttressing and materials up and downstream to reinforce the dam –– 
would take roughly three years and come with a $250 million price tag. But in 2016, that number 
grew after the district conducted geotechnical borings of the surrounding soil and found evidence 
of seismic activity in two nearby fault lines previously thought to be inactive.  

The discovery led the district to revise its plans from reinforcement to a complete reinstallation 
of materials at the dam’s embankment.  

The following year, 200 miles north of Anderson, a crater began forming in Oroville Dam’s 
spillway after a particularly wet rainy season. As a result, 188,000 people living downstream 
were evacuated.  

The incident also led the California Department of Water Resources Division of Safety and 
Dams to revise its spillway design guidelines, prompting Valley Water to, once again, adjust its 
plans and completely replace Anderson’s existing spillway. 

 
Page 77 of 245
 
Page 77 of 245

https://milpitasbeat.com/author/gracehase/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/morning-mix/wp/2017/02/13/not-a-drill-thousands-evacuated-in-calif-as-oroville-dam-threatens-to-flood/


What happened at Oroville Dam served as a warning for crumbling and aging infrastructure 
across the country. According to a National Inventory of Dams conducted by the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers, there were approximately 15,600 dams classified as “high-hazard 
structures” in 2019. That means the failure of the dam would result in loss of life and potentially 
significant economic losses. 

And the number of hazardous dams in the United States only has room to grow as infrastructure 
deteriorates with age. According to a report from the American Society of Civil Engineers, the 
average age of dams in the United States is 57; by 2030, 7 out of 10 dams in the United States 
will be over 50 years old.  

Despite the delays, Hakes says there wasn’t always a concern that the project to repair the 
unstable 71-year-old dam wasn’t moving fast enough. After the initial alarm bells from the state 
in 2009, Valley Water drained the reservoir to 58 percent of capacity.  

“From our eyes, even if we had an event, we were going to have the sufficient capacity in the 
reservoir to hold those holes to make sure they didn’t overflow and create that cascading failure 
that we talk about these days,” Hakes said. “From that point of view, we thought we were in a 
good position to move the project forward.” 

 Last year, Assemblymember Robert Rivas (D-Salinas) made his first attempt to move the 
Anderson Dam retrofit project forward quicker. AB 3005, which he introduced to the state 
legislature in February 2020, would have expedited the project’s environmental review and any 
judicial challenges that may have come with it.  

Gov. Gavin Newsom, however, ultimately vetoed the bill, stating that it would set “unrealistic 
timelines for state entities to expedite deliverables” and would “require staff to be diverted away 
from other critical projects” also undergoing environmental review.  

But on Friday, Newsom signed into law Rivas’ second iteration of the bill –– AB 271 –– which 
will allow Valley Water to promptly hire the best contractors to keep the project on its 10-year 
schedule.  

“The Anderson Dam Seismic Retrofit Project is the top priority for Valley Water, not only for 
public safety but for our local water supply as we face another historic drought,” Valley Water 
Board Chair Tony Estremera said in a statement on the bill’s signing.  

With nearly 90,000 acre-feet of capacity, Anderson Reservoir is the district’s largest water 
reserve. But the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) ordered Valley Water to drain 
Anderson to three percent capacity last year, drastically decreasing the supply ahead of yet 
another dry California winter.  

 
Page 78 of 245
 
Page 78 of 245

https://infrastructurereportcard.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Dams-2021.pdf
https://www.sanjoseinside.com/news/gov-gavin-newsom-vetoes-anderson-dam-bill/


The timing of the retrofit project puts Valley Water in a precarious position as last month its 
board voted to mandate a 15 percent water reduction, and CEO Rick Callender proclaimed the 
district’s “water supplies are in serious jeopardy.”  

District 7 Director Gary Kremen told The Beat that “there’s no good time to repair your primary 
reservoir.”  

“We just happen to be in the worst two years of California history from a drought point of view,” 
he added.  

But with some of the “regulatory relief” from the state, Kremen says he believes it won’t take the 
estimated decade to get Anderson Dam back into commission.  

“Hoover Dam didn’t take ten years to build,” Kremen said, referencing the second largest dam in 
the U.S. after Oroville Dam. “This isn’t Hoover Dam.” 

Hakes, for his part, hopes that FERC allows Valley Water to increase its capacity above three 
percent following the completion of the first phase of the project: a 1,700-foot-long tunnel that 
will be able to discharge 6,000 cubic square feet of water a second. 

He says the dam’s current outlet discharges about 500 cubic square feet a second of water –– or 
roughly 500 basketballs a second.  

“While 500 cubic feet per second sounds like a lot, compared to 90,000-acre-feet, it’s not,” 
Hakes said. “What you’re basically looking at is a 55-gallon garbage can that’s having a level 
regulated by a straw punched into the bottom.” 

The tunnel project will begin this summer and is expected to take three years. After that, Valley 
Water will begin work on the retrofitting process by strengthening the dam and the spillway. 

 

 
Page 79 of 245
 
Page 79 of 245

https://milpitasbeat.com/valley-water-declares-water-shortage-mandates-15-reduction-in-water-usage/


NEW LAW ALLOWS ENHANCED PENALTIES FOR 

WATER THEFT 
• SOURCE: ACWA WEBSITE, BY ACWA STAFF, AUG 2,  2021 

SACRAEMENTO – Gov. Newsom recently signed a bill into law that gives California 
water agencies the authority to adopt enhanced penalties for water theft, giving them a 
stronger deterrent to help protect the public’s valuable resource. 

The bill, SB 427, was authored by Sen. Susan Talamantes Eggman D-Stockton) and 
sponsored by Elk Grove Water District. ACWA staff advocated in support of the bill. It 
allows fines for the first violation to be 10 times larger than what previously existed. 

In addition to posing health risks, water theft makes it more difficult for water agencies 
to accurately account for the water being used by their ratepayers. The revenue lost 
from water theft can be passed on to paying customers, having a negative impact on 
water affordability. 

“On behalf of the Elk Grove Water District, I would like to thank Senator Eggman and 
her staff for the hard work and persistent effort in getting SB 427 signed into law,” said 
Bruce Kamilos, General Manager of the Elk Grove Water District. “Because of her 
leadership, and her staff’s exemplary work, every water provider in California now can 
impose strict penalties on those that willingly and illegally connect to the public water 
system, putting the public’s health and safety at risk. “ 

“Additionally, I would like to thank the Association of California Water Agencies and the 
Regional Water Authority for their support on SB 427; specifically, Kris Anderson, 
ACWA, and Ryan Ojakian, RWA, for their guidance and coordination throughout the 
whole process,” Kamilos said. “SB 427 is a major achievement for the water industry.” 

  

 
Page 80 of 245
 
Page 80 of 245



Public Policy Institute of California 
Informing and improving public policy through independent, objective, nonpartisan research 

What It Means to Store Water for the 
Environment 
SARAH BARDEEN JULY 26, 2021 

 

It’s no secret that California’s ecosystems suffer during droughts. In times of water scarcity, 
environmental uses are often low priority, leading to fish die-offs and other negative 
outcomes. For the next year, Professor Sarah Null of Utah State University will be working 
with a diverse team of experts to study how to better manage water stored for the 
environment, to better protect vulnerable ecosystems during a time of biodiversity loss and 
accelerating climate change. Null, an expert in environmental water management and 
water systems modeling, is a PPIC CalTrout Ecosystem Fellow. 
 
What does it mean to store water for the environment, and why is it important? 
It means exactly what it sounds like: storing water, either in surface reservoirs or as 
groundwater, for the environment. However, we’re interested in expanding the options for 
flexibly managing that water. We are thinking about storage as a way to manage water, so 
that it could be traded, stored for later use, exchanged with other users, or released to 
support ecosystem function. 

What’s our biggest challenge with storing water for the environment right now? 
Our team has identified three big challenges; the first is infrastructure. Reservoirs were 
built for other uses, like water supply, hydropower, or flood protection. We have to think 
about how storing water for the environment could impact those other uses. Another big 
challenge is governance—who would manage water for the environment? The last 
challenge is legal opportunities and constraints—how could water be stored for flexible 
use within existing laws? Those three are the big challenges, although there are likely other 
challenges also. 

 
Page 81 of 245
 
Page 81 of 245

https://www.ppic.org/person/sarah-bardeen/
https://www.ppic.org/person/sarah-null/


What are you learning about how to manage environmental water for maximum 
environmental benefit? 
Environmental regulatory requirements are needed to maintain ecosystems. However, they 
are not very good at rehabilitating ecosystems. We need environmental water allocations 
that can be managed flexibly if we are going to build resilience. This could enable more 
proactive water management during droughts for ecosystems, and better integration with 
urban and agricultural water uses. 
How good are our models for predicting climate change’s effects on hydrology, water 
quality, and aquatic habitats? 
We are very confident that the climate is warming; there is uncertainty around 
how much the climate is warming. Precipitation is a whole other ball of wax. We don’t 
really understand whether climate change will make California’s climate grow wetter or 
drier. Both might happen, with wetter winters and drier summers. And because of 
warming, more precipitation will fall as rain instead of snow, leading to what I call 
“flashier” rivers, with lots of runoff over short periods and very dry summers. Those 
conditions are hard to manage, and there’s a good deal of uncertainty around them. For 
climate and hydrological modeling, we simulate a whole bunch of alternatives so we can 
really understand where the bounds of uncertainty lie. 
What’s making you particularly excited about this work right now? 
This project is exciting because it’s really novel. We know that the status quo isn’t working 
for ecosystems. This is an opportunity to be bold and think about how to do things 
differently. Ecosystems and environmental water management bear a lot of risk from 
hydrologic and system uncertainty, which adds urgency and makes this project very timely. 

We have a great team on this project, and I’m excited to lead it. I specialize in 
environmental water management and systems modeling, and our team has another 
systems modeler, water lawyers, a geomorphologist, and ecologists. It’s not new to bring 
together many disciplines to work on water management, but it’s always the smartest way 
to get things done. 

 

 
Page 82 of 245
 
Page 82 of 245

https://www.ppic.org/publication/a-path-forward-for-californias-freshwater-ecosystems/
https://www.ppic.org/publication/a-path-forward-for-californias-freshwater-ecosystems/


Correspondence 

 
Page 83 of 245
 
Page 83 of 245



 
Page 84 of 245
 
Page 84 of 245



 
Page 85 of 245
 
Page 85 of 245



 
Page 86 of 245
 
Page 86 of 245



 
Page 87 of 245
 
Page 87 of 245



 
Page 88 of 245
 
Page 88 of 245



 
Page 89 of 245
 
Page 89 of 245



 
Page 90 of 245
 
Page 90 of 245



 
Page 91 of 245
 
Page 91 of 245



 
Page 92 of 245
 
Page 92 of 245



 
Page 93 of 245
 
Page 93 of 245



 
Page 94 of 245
 
Page 94 of 245



 
Page 95 of 245
 
Page 95 of 245



 
Page 96 of 245
 
Page 96 of 245



 
Page 97 of 245
 
Page 97 of 245



 
Page 98 of 245
 
Page 98 of 245



 
Page 99 of 245
 
Page 99 of 245



 
Page 100 of 245
 
Page 100 of 245



 
Page 101 of 245
 
Page 101 of 245



 
Page 102 of 245
 
Page 102 of 245



Continuing  
Business 

 
Page 103 of 245
 
Page 103 of 245



 
Page 104 of 245
 
Page 104 of 245



 
Page 105 of 245
 
Page 105 of 245



 
Page 106 of 245
 
Page 106 of 245



 
Page 107 of 245
 
Page 107 of 245



 
Page 108 of 245
 
Page 108 of 245



 
Page 109 of 245
 
Page 109 of 245



 
Page 110 of 245
 
Page 110 of 245



 
Page 111 of 245
 
Page 111 of 245



 
Page 112 of 245
 
Page 112 of 245



 
Page 113 of 245
 
Page 113 of 245



 
Page 114 of 245
 
Page 114 of 245



 
Page 115 of 245
 
Page 115 of 245



 
Page 116 of 245
 
Page 116 of 245



 
Page 117 of 245
 
Page 117 of 245



 
Page 118 of 245
 
Page 118 of 245



 
Page 119 of 245
 
Page 119 of 245



 
Page 120 of 245
 
Page 120 of 245



 
Page 121 of 245
 
Page 121 of 245



 
Page 122 of 245
 
Page 122 of 245



 
Page 123 of 245
 
Page 123 of 245



 
Page 124 of 245
 
Page 124 of 245



 
Page 125 of 245
 
Page 125 of 245



 
Page 126 of 245
 
Page 126 of 245



 
Page 127 of 245
 
Page 127 of 245



 
Page 128 of 245
 
Page 128 of 245



 
Page 129 of 245
 
Page 129 of 245



 
Page 130 of 245
 
Page 130 of 245



 
Page 131 of 245
 
Page 131 of 245



 
Page 132 of 245
 
Page 132 of 245



 
Page 133 of 245
 
Page 133 of 245



 
Page 134 of 245
 
Page 134 of 245



 
Page 135 of 245
 
Page 135 of 245



 
Page 136 of 245
 
Page 136 of 245



 
Page 137 of 245
 
Page 137 of 245



 
Page 138 of 245
 
Page 138 of 245



 
Page 139 of 245
 
Page 139 of 245



 
Page 140 of 245
 
Page 140 of 245



 
Page 141 of 245
 
Page 141 of 245



 
Page 142 of 245
 
Page 142 of 245



 
Page 143 of 245
 
Page 143 of 245



 
Page 144 of 245
 
Page 144 of 245



 
Page 145 of 245
 
Page 145 of 245



 
Page 146 of 245
 
Page 146 of 245



 
Page 147 of 245
 
Page 147 of 245



REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ISSUES 
‘WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY DECLARATION’ 
WITH MANDATORY WATER CONSERVATION 
July 27, 2021 Kym Kemp   

 
[Stock image by Nicole-Koehler via Wikimedia Commons] 

Press release from the Redway Community Services District: 
Conservation Measures Are Mandatory. The Redway Community 
Services District is asking its customers to please conserve water use 
due to trigger levels that have been met in the Eel River. The U.S.G.S. 
Miranda Gauge was at 11.6 ‘at 8:30 P.D.T. 

Throughout the day this c.f.s. will fall to at or near 10 c.f.s. This moves 
our community out of stage 2 and into stage 3 water conservation. Simply put, stage 3 is a 
“Water Shortage emergency Declaration.” [Yesterday] morning we had to reduce our 
Gallon Per Minute finished water effluent for the town of Redway yet again normally we 
are able to treat and pump 350 gallons per minute we are now down to 250 gallons per 
minute effluent, and the treatment plant will be running close to 24 hours of operation. 

The major concerns that District staff has at this point is if we have a major equipment 
failure or that there might be an interruption in water supply delivery due to a mainline 
break in the water distribution system itself would cause major issues in maintaining water 
storage for town. 

The details of the Water Conservation Stages can be found in our Water Conservation 
Ordinance online at the Redwaycsd.org, or you can pick up a physical copy up at the office 
at 1150 Evergreen rd. Redway CA, 95560. 

Your help in this matter is much appreciated, we all really need to do our part in 
conserving. 

Cody Cox 
General Manager 

 

 
Page 148 of 245
 
Page 148 of 245

https://kymkemp.com/2021/07/27/redway-community-services-district-issues-water-shortage-emergency-declaration-with-mandatory-water-conservation/
https://kymkemp.com/author/kymk/
https://redwaycsd.org/


LOCO STAFF / WEDNESDAY, JULY 14, 2021   
Trinidad Declares Drought Emergency, Says 
Water Conservation is Necessary and May 
Become Mandatory 

 

From the City of Trinidad: 

The Water Committee of the City of 
Trinidad has announced a drought 
notice for its residents. Trinidad 
draws about 2 million gallons of 
surface water each month from 
Luffenholtz Creek and processes it 
for about 323 water customers. 
Surface water flow of the creek has 
been steadily decreasing since 
June. 

“This year’s drought is steadily approaching the peak severity of the last one,” Richard 
Clompus, Water Committee and City Council Member said. “And unfortunately, we don’t 
have another water source for the City at this time.” 

Luffenholtz Creek has been the sole source of water for the city for decades. Voluntary 
reductions in water use is being communicated to each water customer. If creek water 
flow were to decrease further, mandatory restrictions of water use would be enforced. 
The City’s website will be updated to indicate drought conditions and recommendations 
to reduce water usage. For more information, please visit www.Trinidad.ca.gov. “We 
have always lived within our means when it comes to water in the greater Trinidad area. 
But as the conditions change, so must we change our behavior and attitude towards 
water” says Steve Ladwig, Mayor of Trinidad. 

For further information, please contact Eli Naffah, Trinidad City Manager, 
citymanager@trinidad.gov. 
 

 
Page 149 of 245
 
Page 149 of 245

https://lostcoastoutpost.com/author/loco-staff
https://lostcoastoutpost.com/2021/jul/14/


 
Page 150 of 245
 
Page 150 of 245



 
Page 151 of 245
 
Page 151 of 245



 
Page 152 of 245
 
Page 152 of 245



 
Page 153 of 245
 
Page 153 of 245



New  
Business 

 
Page 154 of 245
 
Page 154 of 245



 
Page 155 of 245
 
Page 155 of 245



 
Page 156 of 245
 
Page 156 of 245



Engineering 

 
Page 157 of 245
 
Page 157 of 245



 
 
 
 
 
 

GHD 

718 Third Street Eureka California 95501 USA 
T 707 443 8326  F 707 444 8330  W www.ghd.com 

August 5, 2021 

To: HBMWD Board of Directors Ref. No.: 11186675 
    

From: Nathan Stevens, District Engineer Tel: 707-267-2204 

CC: John Friedenbach, Dale Davidsen, Chris Harris, Steve 
McHaney 

  

Subject: 12 kV Switchgear Relocation Project – Test Switches Change Order 

The purpose of this Memorandum (Memo) is to provide the Board with background information on the 
executed construction change order related to installing relay test switches as a part of the 12 kV Switchgear 
Relocation Project.  

The new switchgear will have several power feeders that are controlled in part by protective relays, which 
are devices that control the opening and closing of the power circuit breakers. The relays need to be tested 
for proper functionality during commissioning of the project, which is prior to cutting power over to the new 
switchgear. Since the relays will be tested before the switchgear is energized, this testing can be done 
without test switches. However, it is also recommended that the relays be tested by the District at 
appropriate intervals throughout their useful lives and that they are kept in proper operating condition by the 
District. A failed relay does not provide the intended function and could result in other significant problems 
with the equipment depending on the circumstances.  

With test switches installed, the relays can be tested while the switchgear and relays are left in service. 
While it is possible to perform testing and maintenance without test switches, it is more complicated. Without 
test switches, the system would need to be shut down and existing wiring would need to be disconnected to 
test the relays. The District’s Essex facility and pumping stations would not be able to run on either utility or 
generator power while this work was occurring. With test switches, the District will be able to test the relays 
while the facility remains online, fully energized, and functional. The switchgear at the District’s Matthews 
Dam hydropower facility has test switches, which are available for testing the relays while the equipment 
remains online and functional. 

GHD discussed the District’s desire for the addition of test switches with the switchgear manufacturer prior to 
the switchgear equipment being manufactured. The issue was brought up again after manufacturing of the 
switchgear was complete and we realized test switches had not been installed. The switchgear manufacturer 
noted that they did not include test switches in their proposal because they had not received explicit written 
direction to do so, despite the fact it was discussed with them, and they proceeded with manufacturing the 
equipment without test switches.  

District staff determined that to improve system functionality, they would like to proceed with installation of 
test switches. While test switches are not required by PG&E, are not included in the switchgear 

 
Page 158 of 245
 
Page 158 of 245

http://www.ghd.com/


 
 
 

HBMWD Board Memo _12 kV Test Switch CO.docx 2 

manufacturer’s standard specifications, and are not essential to initial commissioning, GHD believes that the 
long-term maintenance benefits to including test switches warrant this addition, and GHD supports the 
District’s decision to include them. PG&E also supports the installation of test switches despite the fact they 
do not require them.  

Due to the fact that the switchgear equipment has already been manufactured and assembled in an 
integrated building unit to be shipped to the project site, a change order with the contractor was required to 
add the test switches. The installation of test switches will be more expensive now than it would have been 
during the initial manufacturing of the switchgear equipment due to additional difficulty in the field for cutting 
holes in panel doors, field wiring the switches, and other considerations that affect efficiency. Since GHD did 
not include test switches in the original design and it is something the District desires, we feel it appropriate 
for GHD to be responsible for the extra cost of field installation compared to initial factory installation. 

The total proposed change order cost is $42,281.07 for materials plus field installation of the test switches. 
GHD performed an analysis to estimate the difference in cost between installing test switches in the factory 
and installing test switches in the field. Based on a review of factory versus field installation requirements, it 
was determined what it would be appropriate to assume that the labor associated with field installation would 
be twice as costly as labor associated with factory installation. Based on this approach, we calculated that an 
appropriate total cost for materials plus factory installation would be $25,473.19, which is the District’s share. 
As such, the GHD share is the remaining $16,807.88 of the change order.  

In an effort to maintain project schedule, John Friedenbach has signed the change order with the contractor, 
given that the final cost to the District for this change order will be under the $30,000 General Manager 
discretionary threshold. In consideration of contractual procedures, the District was required to sign a change 
order with the contractor for the full $42,281.07. GHD will provide a credit to the District of $16,807.88 on our 
contract for this project. Additionally, GHD has spent approximately $3,500 of effort in addressing the 
District’s desire to include test switches via change order. None of this effort will be charged to the District. 

In light of the fact that the period of performance of the disaster declaration that this project was funded 
under is coming to a close, there is potential that other projects funded under this disaster have ended under 
budget, and there may be additional funding available under this disaster declaration that could be 
reallocated to the 12 kV Switchgear Relocation Project. The District has made an inquiry to Cal OES staff 
regarding the potential for additional funding for this project and is awaiting a response. However, there is no 
guarantee that additional funding would be available. 

 
Page 159 of 245
 
Page 159 of 245



 
Page 160 of 245
 
Page 160 of 245



 
Page 161 of 245
 
Page 161 of 245



 
Page 162 of 245
 
Page 162 of 245



 
Page 163 of 245
 
Page 163 of 245



 
Page 164 of 245
 
Page 164 of 245



 
Page 165 of 245
 
Page 165 of 245



 
Page 166 of 245
 
Page 166 of 245



 
Page 167 of 245
 
Page 167 of 245



 
 
 
 
 
 

GHD 

718 Third Street Eureka California 95501 USA 
T 707 443 8326  F 707 444 8330  W www.ghd.com 

August 4, 2021 

To: HBMWD Board of Directors Ref. No.: 11186675 
    

From: Nathan Stevens, District Engineer Tel: 707-267-2204 

CC: John Friedenbach, Dale Davidsen, Chris Harris, Steve 
McHaney 

  

Subject: Reservoirs Structural Retrofit Hazard Mitigation Grant – Phase One Deliverables List 

The Phase One deliverables for this project were provided to Cal OES by the due date of July 30, 2021 and 
included the following items: 

• Geotechnical Report 
• Basis of Design Technical Memorandum 
• 60% drawings for both the Korblex and Samoa Peninsula sites 
• 60% technical specification packages for each project site 
• Bid schedule for each project site  
• 60% Cost Estimate 
• Botanical Surveys Technical Memorandum 
• Biological Resources Evaluation Report 
• Cultural Resources Report 
• Limited Hazardous Materials Survey Report 
• Environmental Database Review Technical Memorandum for each project site 

 
Page 168 of 245
 
Page 168 of 245

http://www.ghd.com/


 
Page 169 of 245
 
Page 169 of 245



 
Page 170 of 245
 
Page 170 of 245



 
Page 171 of 245
 
Page 171 of 245



 
Page 172 of 245
 
Page 172 of 245



Financial 

 
Page 173 of 245
 
Page 173 of 245



 
Page 174 of 245
 
Page 174 of 245



 
Page 175 of 245
 
Page 175 of 245



 
Page 176 of 245
 
Page 176 of 245



 
Page 177 of 245
 
Page 177 of 245



 
Page 178 of 245
 
Page 178 of 245



 
Page 179 of 245
 
Page 179 of 245



 
Page 180 of 245
 
Page 180 of 245



 
Page 181 of 245
 
Page 181 of 245



 
Page 182 of 245
 
Page 182 of 245



 
Page 183 of 245
 
Page 183 of 245



 
Page 184 of 245
 
Page 184 of 245



 
Page 185 of 245
 
Page 185 of 245



 
Page 186 of 245
 
Page 186 of 245



 
Page 187 of 245
 
Page 187 of 245



 
Page 188 of 245
 
Page 188 of 245



 
Page 189 of 245
 
Page 189 of 245



 
Page 190 of 245
 
Page 190 of 245



 
Page 191 of 245
 
Page 191 of 245



 
Page 192 of 245
 
Page 192 of 245



 
Page 193 of 245
 
Page 193 of 245



 
Page 194 of 245
 
Page 194 of 245



 
Page 195 of 245
 
Page 195 of 245



 
Page 196 of 245
 
Page 196 of 245



 
Page 197 of 245
 
Page 197 of 245



 
Page 198 of 245
 
Page 198 of 245



 
Page 199 of 245
 
Page 199 of 245



 
Page 200 of 245
 
Page 200 of 245



 
Page 201 of 245
 
Page 201 of 245



 
Page 202 of 245
 
Page 202 of 245



 
Page 203 of 245
 
Page 203 of 245



 
Page 204 of 245
 
Page 204 of 245



 
Page 205 of 245
 
Page 205 of 245



 
Page 206 of 245
 
Page 206 of 245



 
Page 207 of 245
 
Page 207 of 245



 
Page 208 of 245
 
Page 208 of 245



 
Page 209 of 245
 
Page 209 of 245



Operations 

 
Page 210 of 245
 
Page 210 of 245



Memo to: HBMWD Board of Directors 
From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent 
Date: August 2, 2021 
Subject: Essex/Ruth July 2021 Operational Report 
 
 
Upper Mad River, Ruth Lake, and Hydro Plant  
 

1. The flow at Mad River above Ruth Reservoir (Zenia Bridge) averaged 0 cfs. The low 
flow was 0 cfs on July 31st and the high flow was 1 cfs on July1st. 

 
2. The conditions at Ruth Lake for July were as follows: 

 
The lake level on July 31st   was 2648.28 feet which is: 

• 2.79 feet lower than June 30th, 2021 
• 0.85 feet lower than July 31st, 2020 
• 0.62 feet higher than the ten-year average 
• 5.72 feet below the spillway 

3. There was no recorded rainfall for July at Ruth Headquarters. 

4. Ruth Hydro produced 139,200 KWh in July. There was 1 shutdown for PGE work, 
with lost time of 81 hours and lost production of 16,200 KWh. 

5. The lake discharge averaged 43 cfs with a high of 46 cfs on July 4th. 

 Lower Mad River, Winzler Control, and TRF 
  

6. The river at Winzler Control Center for July had an average flow of 41 cfs.  The river 
flow reached a high of 47 cfs on July 1st. 

7. The domestic water conditions were as follows: 

• The domestic water turbidity average was 0.12 NTU, which meets Public 
Health Secondary Standards. 

• As of July 31st, we pumped 272.251 MG at an average of 8.807 MGD. 
• The maximum metered daily municipal use was 9.446 MGD on July 9th. 

8. The TRF conditions for July were as follows: 

• The plant is offline for the summer. 

 
Page 211 of 245
 
Page 211 of 245



9. July 1st -9th – Maintenance staff installed the future collector 2 power and 
communication conduits from IPA vault to top of the Essex Driveway.  

10. July 6th – 9th – Maintenance inspected the TRF filter media. 
11. July 7th – Attended County planning meeting regarding Nordic with John 
12. July 9th – Joint Board meeting with RLCSD 
13. July 14th  

• Safety meetings 
i. Traffic Control 

ii. Asbestos/Silica 
• Instream flow Zoom Meeting with NMFS 

14. July 16th – Policed homeless camps, the 299 R-O-W is cleared out, and mostly 
cleaned up.  Found a new camp in a different area though.  Working on it now. 

15. July 22nd – Attended Harbor District meeting with John & Chris. 
16. July 23rd – Worked on Spillway repair QCIP coordination.  
17. July 26th & 27th – Maintenance installed the Buckman Trail service manifold. 
18. July 27th – CDFW instream flow meeting 
19. July 28th – Chlorine shortage Teams meeting with our supplier.  
20. Current and Ongoing Projects   

• COVID 19 – Dealing with modified staffing arrangements due to COVID cases 
as best we can.  All staff is doing well.    

• 12kV project. – Project construction back in progress.  Weekly coordination 
meetings with the contractor and sub-contractors, regarding Equipment, 
SCADA communications and cutover planning ongoing. 

• TRF Generator / Tesla battery bank projects – Coordination meetings are 
happening 

• Reservoir Seismic Retrofit project. – Meetings, plan reviews and emails as 
needed. 60% design done. 

• Routine annual equipment maintenance and services.  

 
 

 
Page 212 of 245
 
Page 212 of 245



2625.0

2630.0

2635.0

2640.0

2645.0

2650.0

2655.0

2660.0

2665.0

1/
1

1/
15

1/
29

2/
12

2/
26

3/
11

3/
25 4/

8

4/
22 5/

6

5/
20 6/

3

6/
17 7/

1

7/
15

7/
29

8/
12

8/
26 9/

9

9/
23

10
/7

10
/2

1

11
/4

11
/1

8

12
/2

12
/1

6

12
/3

0

Date

Ruth Lake Elevation

Lake Elevation 2021, ft

Lake Elevation 2020, ft

Lake Elevation 10 Year
Avg

Spillway Level



0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

1/
1

1/
15

1/
29

2/
12

2/
26

3/
11

3/
25 4/

8

4/
22 5/

6

5/
20 6/

3

6/
17 7/

1

7/
15

7/
29

8/
12

8/
26 9/

9

9/
23

10
/7

10
/2

1

11
/4

11
/1

8

12
/2

12
/1

6

12
/3

0

Fl
ow

 -
cf

s

Date

Flow at Zenia Bridge

Mad River at Zenia Br
2021, cfs

Mad River at Zenia Br
2020, cfs

Ten Year Avg 2010 - 2019

Ruth Rainfall Water Year 2020 2021



0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

In
ch

es

Ruth Rainfall - Water Year 2020-2021

Water Year 20-21
Cumulative

Water Year 19-20
Cumulative

10 Year Cumulative
Average

Historical Cumulative
Average '83 - '20

 
Page 215 of 245
 
Page 215 of 245



0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

1/
1

1/
15

1/
29

2/
12

2/
26

3/
11

3/
25 4/

8

4/
22 5/

6

5/
20 6/

3

6/
17 7/

1

7/
15

7/
29

8/
12

8/
26 9/

9

9/
23

10
/7

10
/2

1

11
/4

11
/1

8

12
/2

12
/1

6

12
/3

0

Ri
ve

r F
lo

w
, c

fs

Ri
ve

r L
ev

el
, f

t

Date

River Level and Flow

River Level 2021, ft

River Level 2020, ft

10 Year Avg River
Level, ft

2021 Flow at 299
Bridge, cfs

2020 Flow at 299
Bridge, cfs

10 Year Avg River
Flow, cfs

 
Page 216 of 245
 
Page 216 of 245



Memo to: Board of Directors 
From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent 
Date: August 3, 2021   
Subject: Surplus equipment request 
  
 
The District has 8 computers and 1 printer we would like to surplus. These computers are 
from both the SCADA Control and Administration networks.  I propose the District 
surplus the following equipment. 
 
 

Unit ID Service Start Service End 
1 MAINT(X) 2011 2020 
2 OPS6 2013 2020 
3 GIS(X) 2010 2019 
4 AOPS(X) 2013 2019 
5 LABK3 2011 2019 
6 OPS3 2005 2020 
7 SCADAK1 2012 2018 
8 ELECT 2012 2018 

9 MAINT 
PRINTER 2012 2020 

 

 
Page 217 of 245
 
Page 217 of 245



Management 

 
Page 218 of 245
 
Page 218 of 245





 
Page 220 of 245
 
Page 220 of 245



 
Page 221 of 245
 
Page 221 of 245



 
Page 222 of 245
 
Page 222 of 245



 
Page 223 of 245
 
Page 223 of 245



 
Page 224 of 245
 
Page 224 of 245



 
Page 225 of 245
 
Page 225 of 245



 
Page 226 of 245
 
Page 226 of 245



 
Page 227 of 245
 
Page 227 of 245



 
Page 228 of 245
 
Page 228 of 245



 
Page 229 of 245
 
Page 229 of 245



 
Page 230 of 245
 
Page 230 of 245



 
Page 231 of 245
 
Page 231 of 245



 
Page 232 of 245
 
Page 232 of 245



 
Page 233 of 245
 
Page 233 of 245



 
Page 234 of 245
 
Page 234 of 245



 
Page 235 of 245
 
Page 235 of 245



Directors 

 
Page 236 of 245
 
Page 236 of 245



ACWA 

 
Page 237 of 245
 
Page 237 of 245



Resolution 2021-15 

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water 
District Placing in Nomination J. Bruce Rupp as a Member of the Association of 

California Water Agencies Finance Committee 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HUMBOLDT BAY 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District 
(HBMWD) does encourage and support the participation of its members in the affairs of 
the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA); and 

WHEREAS, J. Bruce Rupp currently serves as a member of the ACWA Region 1 Board 
of Directors, the Finance Committee and the Membership Committee; and 

WHEREAS, J. Bruce Rupp has indicated a desire to continue to serve as a Board 
Member for ACWA Region 1; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Humboldt Bay 
Municipal Water District places its full and unreserved support in the nomination of J. 
Bruce Rupp as a member of the ACWA Finance Committee 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of HBMWD does hereby 
determine that the expenses attendant with the service of J. Bruce Rupp in ACWA 
Region 1 shall be borne by the HBMWD. 

PASSED and ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District this 12th day of August 2021, by the following 
roll call vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

Attest: ______________________       ____________________________ 

Sheri Woo, Board President       Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer 

Page 238 of 245



Resolution 2021-16 

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water 
District Placing in Nomination J. Bruce Rupp as a Member of the Association of 

California Water Agencies Membership Committee 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HUMBOLDT BAY 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District 
(HBMWD) does encourage and support the participation of its members in the affairs of 
the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA); and 

WHEREAS, J. Bruce Rupp currently serves as a member of the ACWA Region 1 Board 
of Directors, the Finance Committee and the Membership Committee; and 

WHEREAS, J. Bruce Rupp has indicated a desire to continue to serve as a member of 
the ACWA Membership Committee. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Humboldt Bay 
Municipal Water District places its full and unreserved support in the nomination of J. 
Bruce Rupp as a member of the Membership Committee. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of HBMWD does hereby 
determine that the expenses attendant with the service of J. Bruce Rupp in ACWA 
Region 1 shall be borne by the HBMWD. 

PASSED and ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District this 12th day of August, 2021, by the following 
roll call vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

Attest: 

________________ ____________       ____________________________ 
Sheri Woo, Board President         Bruce Rupp Secretary/Treasurer 

Page 239 of 245



ACWA - JPIA 

 
Page 240 of 245
 
Page 240 of 245



RCEA/RREDC 

 
Page 241 of 245
 
Page 241 of 245



 
Page 242 of 245
 
Page 242 of 245



 
Page 243 of 245
 
Page 243 of 245



 
Page 244 of 245
 
Page 244 of 245



 
Page 245 of 245
 
Page 245 of 245


	Agenda 08-12-21
	District Mission
	Reliably deliver high quality drinking water to the communities and customers we serve in the greater Humboldt Bay Area at a reasonable cost. Reliably deliver untreated water to our wholesale industrial customer(s) at a reasonable cost. Protect the lo...

	Minutes
	Draft Minutes 07-08-21
	1. Roll Call
	Due to Time Set Items, the agenda items were addressed out of chronological order.
	2. Flag Salute
	There was no public comment.
	4. Public Comment
	5. Minutes
	There was no public comment.
	There was no public comment.
	There was no public comment.
	There was no public comment.
	There was no public comment.
	There was no public comment.

	Draft minutes 07-09-21-Special meeting at Ruth
	1. Introductions and Roll Call
	2. Public Comment
	There was no public comment.

	Consent
	6.1 - 1 - We are very fortunate with our water supply
	‘We are very fortunate with our water supply’: Ruth Reservoir at 87% capacity

	6.1 - 2 - Humboldt County warns of public health concerns related to drought
	Humboldt County warns of public health concerns related to drought

	6.1 - 3 - Humboldt County supervisors to talk action on drought
	Humboldt County supervisors to talk action on drought, low river levels
	Declaration could impact future commercial pot grows using groundwater wells


	6.1 - 4 - Mad River rafting
	6.1 - 5 - $16.5 Million for the Great Redwood trail
	$16.5 million secured for Great Redwood Trail project

	6.1 - 6 - weed busts Lost Coast Outpost
	Lost Coast Outpost- LoCO Staff / 7-22-21
	WEED BUST BONANZA! Marijuana Enforcement Team Leads Multi-Agency Effort, Serving 23 Warrants at Grow Ops Illegally Diverting Water

	6.1 - 7 -  Study Finds California Cannabis Farms Irrigating with Groundwater May Affect Stream Flows
	New Study Finds California Cannabis Farms Irrigating with Groundwater May Affect Stream Flows

	6.1 - 8 - Cannabis farms not as Thirsty
	Study: Cannabis farms not as thirsty as previously thought

	6.1 - 9 - forever chemicals in water
	6.1 - 10 - utilitites Lost Coast Outpost
	Lost Coast Outpost
	Jackie Botts, CALmatters / 7/20/21
	Unpaid Utility Bills? California Will Pay Off $2 Billion Worth to Avoid Shutoffs
	A Catch-22 at LA’s utilities department?
	Mounting debt, and shutoffs despite protections
	Living without water or power
	Relief on the way for California utility bills
	A repeat of rent relief troubles?


	6.1 - 11 - public trust lawsuit
	July 14, 2021  |  Written by Aaron A. Ferguson, Ellen M. Simmons (for Somach, Simmons and Dunn, attorneys at law)
	Lawsuit Will Test Application of Requirement That a County Consider Public Trust Resources in Permitting Groundwater Extraction
	Environmental Law Foundation v. State Water Resources Control Board (2018)
	California Coastkeeper Alliance v. County of Sonoma


	6.1 - 12 - A Rose Inspired This Design For the Smartest Way to Collect And Purify Water
	A Rose Inspired This Design For the Smartest Way to Collect And Purify Water

	6.1 - 13 - Sustainable Sand Gives Pollution a One
	Sustainable Sand Gives Pollution a One-Two Punch by Soaking Up Toxic Metals and Purifying Water Supplies

	6.1 - 14 - New Web Project Traces Every Waterway in Contiguous U
	New Web Project Traces Every Waterway in Contiguous U.S.
	Follow the Colorado River
	Follow the Snake River
	Follow the Mississippi River


	6.1 - 15 - Valley Water embarks on Anderson Dam project after years of unexpected delays
	Valley Water embarks on Anderson Dam project after years of unexpected delays

	6.1 - 16 - NEW LAW ALLOWS ENHANCED PENALTIES FOR WATER THEFT
	NEW LAW ALLOWS ENHANCED PENALTIES FOR WATER THEFT

	6.1 - 17 - storing water for the Environment
	What It Means to Store Water for the Environment

	Correspondence
	7.1 - FERC letter re dam safety inspection follow up dated 7-13-21
	7.2 - FERC letter dated 7_20_21 to HBMWD approving dam spillway mainte
	7.3 - letter to NCRA  RE NCRA commercial license amendment
	7.4 - letter to Nordic
	7.5 - letter to loggers re 3-acre conv at TRF 7-22-21
	7.6 - Support for MR Agust Complex restoration Project 60286 comments by HBMWD
	7.7 - FEMA COVID grant letter 7-13-21
	7.8 - Arcata 2020 UWMP
	7.9 - Quagga progress report 7-19-21
	7.10 - Quagga letter to RLCSD re ca map
	Continuing Business
	8.1 - WRP memo
	8.1aii1 letter to TR re water mainline extension analysis
	8.1aii2 - MEA
	8.1aii3 - HBMWD ltr to WAC 070221
	8.1ciii - Instream flow outreach proposal
	8.1di - Correspondence acknowledgement from Envirostar for letter
	8.1dii - ground water sample results
	8.2 - 6_16_21 leter requesting extension for Ruth Lake EWP project
	8.2b notice of inspection
	8.3 b- REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ISSUES ‘WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY DECLARATION’ WITH MANDATORY WATER CONSERVATION

	8.3b - Humboldt supes
	8.3 b- Trinidad drought
	LoCO Staff / Wednesday, July 14, 2021
	Trinidad Declares Drought Emergency, Says Water Conservation is Necessary and May Become Mandatory

	8.3b - ukiah drought
	8.3b -drought article
	New Business
	Engineering
	10.1ai -  HBMWD Board Memo _12 kV Test Switch CO
	10.1ai2- 12 kV Switchgear Change Order 05
	10.1aii - GHD credit for test switches
	10.1c - FEMA approval letter
	10.1d - Reservoirs Structural Retrofit Deliverables List
	10.1g -  Matthews Seismic Stability RFI 01 Response
	Financial
	10.2a - financial report
	10.2b - project budget revision
	10.2c - HBMWD letter to Munis re PF2 07-22-21
	10.2d - hydro analysis
	Operations
	10.3a - BoardMem_Jul_2021
	10.3b - Copy of Historic Charts for Board
	Charts

	10.3c - Computers and Printer - Surplus request_
	Management
	11.1a  - ACWA Fall conference flyer
	11.1b -  NSDC coalition letter in support of H.R. 3534 dated 7-15-21
	11.1c - - ACWA letter re Covid final rule dated 7-16-21
	11.1d - ACWA Coalition letter in opposition to H.R. 2467 dated 7-21-21
	11.2a - SSCE packet
	11c - Annie and Mary Trail
	Directors
	ACWA
	Resolution 2021-15 Placing in Nomination J. Bruce Rupp as member of ACWA  Finance committee
	Resolution 2021-16 Placing in Nomination J. Bruce Rupp as member of ACWA  Membership committee
	ACWA JPIA 
	RCEA RREDC
	RCEA agenda
	RRDEC



